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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
‘T'o the General Assembly of Anadolu Tsuzu Otomeotiv ve Ticaret A5,
A)  Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1)  Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Anadolu Tsuzu Otomotiv ve Ticaret A.§. (the
Company™) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of fi nancial
position as al 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
palicies,

Tn our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 Decemnber 2019, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards {TFRS).

) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board
and the Standards on Independent Auditing (“STA™) which is a parl of Turkish Auditing Standards
published by the Public Owversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority ("POAT). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audii
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Fthies for Independent Auditors (“Code of Ethics™) published by the POA,
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
staternents, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion,

3)  Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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3 Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

I*it:T_&,r Audit Matter | How the matter was addressed in the audit
Deferred Tax Assets Caleulated over Previous Years” | Qur audit procedures applied in this field include
Tax Lasses

the issues below:

According to the Turkish Tax Legislation, financial
losses stated in the declaration can be deducted from
the profit of the company for the period providing not
exceeding 5 years. Total financial losses of the Group
transferring as of 31 December 2019 is 151701
thousand ‘1'7., and 25.619 thousand TL ol this amount

iz 2016 financial loss, 30492 thousand TL of this |
amount is 2017, 73.375 thousand 11, of this amount is

2018 and the remaining 29.215 TL is 2019 {inancial
loss.

As stated in Note 25 related to consolidated financial
statements, The Group recognised 32,253 thousand
TL of deterred tax assel caleulated on previous years’
lax losses as of 31 December 2019,

Partially or wholly recoverable amount of calculated
deferred tax assets is estimuted by the Group
Management according to assumptions under current
circumstances. During the estimation, future business
plans, losses in the last 5 years and due dates of unused
losses are considercd. To what extent the assels in
question can be recognized depends on the estimations
of the Group Management, therefore these assets are
evaluated as a key audit matter.

To identify controls relevant to process of
implication of assumptions made by the
THANAZCMENT,

To design and apply tests to oblain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence with regards
to evaluation of design and determination of
implementation of the contrals.

To evaluale and investigate the assumptions
and judgements used in determination of
future laxable earning estimations together
with sensitivity analyses by analysing
assumptions  made by the  Group
Management;

To evaluate
assumptions
Management;

validity and acceptability of
made by the Group

To consider the effect of adjustments in the
legislation it required; and

To reconcile amounts and expiry dates of
utilisable previous years® tax losses with tax
declarations;

To cvaluate whether the disclosures in
consolidated  financisl  slatements  for
applications of judgements used in the
estimations of delerred tax assets stated or
not stated in the consolidated financial
statements include the deferred tax position
according to TAS provisions,
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4)  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
staternents in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statemenls that are free from material
misstatement, whether due Lo frand or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going coneern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Group’s (inancial reparting process.
5)  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantce
that an audit conducted in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board
and SIA will always detect a malerial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise trom fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board and
SIA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

s [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stalements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion (The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, a3 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control)

e Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluatc the appropriatenicss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of aceounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to cvents
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial stalements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sulficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opimion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We TeTmain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemenl that we have complied wilh relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maltlers that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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B)  Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102
(*1'CC), the auditor’s report on the system and the committee of early detection of risk has been
submitted o the Board of Directors of the Company on 28 February 2020.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, nothing has come to our attention that
may cause us to believe that the Group’s set of accounts and financial statements prepared for the periad
1 January-31 December 2019 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association in relation to financial reporting,

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the
required information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Koray Opztitrk.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECT MALI MUSAVIRLIK A5,
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Koray Oztiirk, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, 28 Febroary 2020
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ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND TTS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 1
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

Restated
Audited Audited
Current Perind Prior Period
MNotes 31.12.2019 322018

ASSETS
Current Assels 857,423,932 943.055.894
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 140,803 554 96,306,029
Trade Receivables 42325775 249,815,860
Trade Receivables from Relaied Parties G-27 2573.971 024207
Trade Receivables from Third Parlics & J90. 751 804 241794653
Cither Receivables 13.904.303 41.324.118
Other Receivables from Third Parlies 7 13,904,303 41,324,118
Tnventorics 9 238,854,407 478,046,804
Drerivative Lonstruments 8 442 165 -
Prepaid Expenses 17 9879880 22,340,495
Assets Relaled 1o Current Tax 235 424 247 835831
Other Current Assets 17 30,789.595 54.186.757
Non-Curreni Asscts T19.020.218 656.609.568
Other Receivables 186 186
Other Receivables from Third Pariies 7 186 186
Property, Plant and Equipment [0 557688250 360.645.627
Right-of-use Assets 12 3330515 -
Intangible Assels 133.932317 93.901.876
(Foadwill 13 23400995 2.340995
{Mther fntangible Assets I 131.591.322 9I.560.881
TPrepaid Expenses 17 f.534328 2.059.179
Deforred Tax Asset 25 13.534.622 -
TOTAL ASSETS 1.576.444. 150 1.599.605.762

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

ANA



ANADOLU ISUZT OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 2
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )
Restated
Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
Motes 31122019 31.12.2018
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 856.703.335 920.275.876
Short=-Term Borrowings [ #9.542.901 341,352,649
Shore-Term Borrowings from Thivd Parties 5 189,542,901 341.332.649
Bank Loans 5 189 542 80/ 341352649
Short-Term Portions of Long-Term Borrowings 202.965.742 210.950.669
Short-Term Partions of Long Term Borrowings from
Third Parfies 3 202.965.742 20950669
Bank Loans ¥ 201067843 200950669
Fingnee Lease Payables 5 1.897.857 -
Trade Payables 421.671.0635 325.219.054
Trade Payahles lo Relafed Parties 6-27 [70.044 348 109.309.356
Trade Payabfes to Third Parties i 244726717 215 705.698
Other Payables 1.401.657 Q87867
ther Payables o Related Parties 27 9.10¢ 9109
Oeher Payables io Thivd Parties 7 1,302,548 D78.758
Payables Related to Employee Benefits 7 6.822.947 6.115.190
[leferred Income 17 £6.782.350 20,414,477
Short-Term Provisions 27.5316.673 15.233.570
Shori-1enm Provisions for Employee Benafits fii 4080612 843195
(Mher Shor=-Term Provisions 13 23 436.061 {4.302.775
MNon-Current Liabilities 155.652.641 134.751.823
Long-Term Borrowings 107.259.1548 90.420.000
Long-Term Borrowings from Third Parties [07.259.138 S0.420.000
Bunk Loans 3 1003.377.340 9. 420,000
Finance Lease Pavables a 3681708 -
Liabilities Arising From Customer Contracts 17 19.945.190 13.492.820
Deferred lncome 1 683,541 590.029
Tong-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits 16 27.764.472 23.RB5.435
Deferred Tax Liability 25 - 6.363.539
EQUITY 18 564.088.174 544.638.063
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company 564.088.174 544.638.063
Share Capital L8 £4.000.000 84.000.000
Adjustments to Share Capital I8 30.149.426 30,149,426
Revaluation and Remeasurement Earnings/Losses 18 406.769.583 409.107.297
Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit I8 162.221.926 162.221.926
Prior Years' ProfitT.osses &1 [ 140.840.586) (60.331.986}
Met ProfitLoss [or The Year 13 21.787.825 (80.508.600)
Non-Controfling Interests 18 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1.576.444.150

1.599.663.762




ANADOLU 1SUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYQ VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREINENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 31 DECEMBER 2018

Page No: 3

{Amouniy expressed in Turkish Liva unlesy atherwise indicated.)

Bestated
Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
1 January- 1 January-
Motes 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
FPROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 1% | 422 987 899 1.187.862.785
Cast of Sales () 19 (1.164.119.765) (1.003.642.016)
GROSS PROFTIT (LOSS) 258.868.134 184.220.769
Administrative Expenses (-) 0 (61.011.520) {47.965.122)
Marketing Expenses (-} 20 (94,335,743} {(77.505.318)
ltesearch and Development lixpenses (<) 20 (2.370.920) (2.908.365)
Other Tncome from Operating Activities 22 53.339.766 106.972.917
Other Expenses from Operating Activities (-) 2z {39.900.505) (123.104.536)
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS 114.589.212 39.710.347
lncome from Tnvesting Activilies 23 168.611 726273
Expenses from Tnvesting Activitics () 23 (48.472) (306.332)
OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE FINANCE EXPENSE 114.709.351 40,130,288
Iinance Income 24 60.092.527 23889617
Finance Expenses (-) 24 (172.012.924) {218.149.807)
PROFIT/ALOSS) BEFORY TAX TROM
(Z{)N"I"I?EUING}DPERA'I'IUNS SR 290
Tax Income/(Expense) From Continuing Operations 15.098.871 13.621.302
Current Tax (Expense) lncome 25 (314.862) 262.783)
Deferred Tax (Expense) Income 25 19.313.733 13.884.087
PROFIT (LOS5) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING
DPEMT{[UNS ) 21.787.825 (80.508.600)
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 20 21.787.825 (B0.508.600)
Prolil (Loss) for the Year Attributable to: 21.787.825 (50.508,600)
Crwners of The Company 21.787.825 (80.508.600)
Earnings/{Losses) Per 100 Share from Continuing Operations 26 0.25%4 (0.9584)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE) 21.787.825 (80.508.600)
Items That Will Not Be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Giain (T.oss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans l& (2.922.142) {3.724.197)
(Gain {Loss) on Remeasurement of Defincd Benefit Plans, i 584,428 744,839
Tax FEffect 235
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMLE (EXPENSE) (2.337.714) (2.979.354)
TOTAL COMPREHNENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) 19.450.111 (83.4587.958)
Mon-Contrelling Interests - -
Owners of The Company 19.450.111 (83.487.958)




AMADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTHV SANAYI VE TICARET A5 AND ITS SURSITHARY Pape Mn: 4
AUDMTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOITHE PERIODS ENTED M DECEMBER 2019 AND 31 DECEMRBER 2INE

(Ao expressed ir Varkick Lirg wnless otfieretse indicated ) -
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ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND I'TS SUBSIDTARY
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 31 DECEMBER 2013
{Amaonnts expressed in Turkish Liva wnless otherwise indicated )
Restated
Audited Andited
Current Period Current Perind
= Mites 31.12.2019 31122018
Cash Flows from Operaling Activities 373.073.864 _(1.754.574)
Profit (T.oss) lor The Year 1% 21.787.825  (80.508.600)
Adjustments to Reconcile Profit (Loss) for The Year 156 840,522 105,431,240
~ Adjustments Related to Depreeiation and Amorization Expenses 10-11-12 400.056.069 33.0932.262
Adjustments Related to Provision for Employee Benefits (Releascd) 16 3860678 4,005,683
Adjustments Related to Tax (Tneome) Expense 25 (15998871 (13.621.302)
Provision for Doubthal Receivables 6-22 185907 -
Adjustmenls Related to Interest Income 12-24 (6. 797.474) {11.474.905)
Adjustmenls Related to Interest Expenscs 2224 B2 2RE 440 58.507.579
Afjustments Related to Unrealized Curmency
Translation Differcnecs 5 27.953.327 110252333
Provision for Impairmenl on Tnventory ) (304,502 (14819
(Other Adjustments Wy Prolit(Loss) Reconciliation 974,253 1662879
Adjustments Related wo Other Provisions (Relessed) 15 27707834 12.601.471
Adjustments Related to Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant
and Bquipment 23 (120,139 (419941
Changes in Working Capital 216.743.957 (D8.757.173)
Adjustments Related to Deeroase (Tnereass) in Trade Receivables b (154.442 463) 71122251
Adjustinents Related to Deercase (Inerease) in Inventories 2 219.192,397 (140,705 71R)
Adjustments Related 1o Decrease {lncrease) in Other Receivables
from Orperabions 7-17 63247005 (61.413.821)
Adjusiments Related 1o [nereass (Deoeréase) in Trade Payables [ 96996936 28.163.743
Adjustiments Related to Inercase (Deerease) in Other Payables from
(perations T-17 11,759.835 G6.181.818
Adjustments Belated o Inorease (Decrease) in Other Asscts from
Operations ; {20.009.773) {2.043.446)
_ Cash Generaied from Operations - 395.341.304 161635467
Ineome Tax Relurns (Faid) 15 {(739.109) {1.098.610)
Payments Related to Other Provisions 15 (18.664.548) [13.528.076)
Payments to Provision of Employes Denefits 16 (2.903.783) {3.293.349)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (75505, 064) (SLBYS.TYT)
Proceeds from Sale of Properly, Plant and Equipment 10-23 183.7838 2.373.134
Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipmont 1 (16,553,519 [13.475.238)
Payments for Purchase of Intangible Asscts 1 (58.504.233) (41.793.693)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities (253 400.81Y) 52.774.3938
[nterest Received 6,809,030 11.561.793
Tnlerest Paid b {90.868.14%) (49.80%.393)
Praceeds from Loans 5 T12.726.254 301,511,800
Cash Oudflows from Bepayment of Loans 5 (BTE.214.837) (410429800
Cash Ousflows Belated b Debl Payments Arising from Lease
~ Agreements - ] (3.853.117) =4
Met Increase {(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 44309081 (1.575.973)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at The Beginning of The Year D645 ] 448 08 357 461
Cash and Cash Equivalents at The End of The Year 4 140.790.569 6.481 488




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A8, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 6
NOTES TO THE AUINTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIIE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(dmounts expressed in Turkish Liva unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Anadolu Lsuzu Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (the “Company™) was established in 1980, Principal aclivilies
of the Company are comprised mainly of manufacturing, assembling, import and sales of commercial yehicles and also
procure and sales of relaled spare parts regarding o after sales service. The Company is registered to Capital Markets Board
of Turkey and the percentage of 15 of the Company’s shares have been traded on Borsa Istanbul A.5. since [997.

The Company carries out its operations as a parmership formed by Isuzu Motors Lid. ltechu Corporation and Anadolu
Group Companies. The Company runs its manufacturing operations in a [actory which is established in Cayirova®ocacli.
I'he average number of employess as of 31 Devember 2019 is 817 (31 December 2018: 802).

The Company has been registered in Turkey, and the address of the Company is Fatih Sultan Mehmet Mahallesi Balkan
Caddesi No: 58 Buyaka E Blok Tepeiistii Umraniye, Istanbul,

The main sharcholder and the contralling parly of the Company is Anadolu Group Holding Anonim Sirketi.
As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, details sbout the company’s subsidiary, which is subject to consolidution, is

helow:
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Company Name Primeipal Activity Capital  Participation Rate  Participation Rate
] (%)
Ant Sinai ve Ticar Uriinler] Pazarlama A5, Trade of spere parts TI6.000 100 100

Approval of Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statemicnts for the period 1 Tanuary — 31 December 2019 approved by the Board of Dircctors on 23
February 2020 and signed by Independent Member of the Board of Director Orhan OFER (Audit Committee Chairman)
and Alimet Murat SELEK (Audit Committec Member), General Manager Yusul Tugrul ARTKAN and Finance Director
Fatma AKSOY O7FK.

The Company and its subsidiary will be referred as (the “Group™) in the consolidated financial statemenls and notes to the
consolidated financial statements,

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of Presentation
2.1.1  Statement of Compliance TAS

The enclosed consolidated financial statcmenls have been preparcd in line with Capital Markets Board (“CMB™),
Communigué Serial: T, No. 14.1 on “Principles on Financial Reporting in Capital Market”, promulgated in Official Gazstre
No. 28676 dated 13 June 2013, Pursuant to Article 5 of the Communiqué, Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (* TAS/TFRS") enforced by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority ("POA™),
and their relevant appendices and interpretations (“TAS/ITRS™) have been taken as basic,

1 addition, the financial statements and disclosures are presented in accordance with the publication by CMB dated 7 June
2013,

The Company (and its Subsidiary registered in Turkey) takes the Turkish Commercial Code ("TCC”), tax legislation and
Uniform Chart of Accounts introduced by Turkish Ministry of Finance as basiv for book keeping and preparation of the
statutory [inancial statements. Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira based on the historical
costs, as well as the [inancial assets and liabilities presented in their fair values. Historical costs are generally based on the
fair value of the amount paid for the assets. Consolidated financial statements have been arranged by applying the required
adjustments and classifications fo the statutory records prepared on historical cost basis in order to provide accurate
presentation in line with TAS/TFRS. The most important adjustment records are the application of consolidalion
accounting, deferred tax caleulation, calculation of employee termination benefit and other provisions,

Currency [sed

which the entity operates (its functional currency). The results and linancial position of the cag
which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency used for presenting consolidited fina

\
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.2  Coaosolidation principles

Subsidiaries

Suhbsidiarics, including structured cntilies, are companies in the Group's control. The Group's control is provides fior
exposure to variable returns from these companies, being eligible for these benefits, and the power to direct them.
Subsidiaries are consolidated using the full consolidation method starting from the date when the contral is transferred to
the Group. They are excluded from the scope of consolidation as of the date when the control is lost.

The purchasing method is used in accounting for group business combinations. The cost of acquisition includes the fair
value of the asscts transferred at the acquisition date, the liabilities incurred by the former owner ol the company, and costs,
consisling of equity instruments issued by the Group. The acquisition cost includes the fair value of the asscls and liahilities
transferred a5 a result of the contingent acquisition agreement.

‘I'he identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities taken over during a business combinution are measured at their
fair value on the acquisition date. For each purchase, non-centrolling shares of the acquired company are recognised either
at their fair value or according to their proportional share in the net assets of the acquired company.

The table helow sets out the subsidiaries and their ownership interests as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,

Voling power held

by the Group (%) Proportion of ownership interest (%)
Subsidiary 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Ant Simal ye Ticar Tlriinleri 100 100 100 100

Pazarlama A5
2.1.3  Adjustment of Vinancial Statements during High Inflation Periods

In scenrdance with CMB’s decision numbered [1/357 on 17 March 2005, inflation accounting application has been
abolished as of 1 January 2005 for the companies operating in Turkey and preparing linancial statements in accordance
with Turkey Accounting Standards. Accordingly, as of | January 2003 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies™ (TAS 29) has not been applied.

2.1.4  Offsetting

The financial assets and liabilitics in the consolidated financial statements are shown at their net value when a legal granted
permission, an intention of stating the consolidated financial statements with their net values and the financial asset and
lishilities are arisen concurrently.

2.1.5 Comparatives and Adjustment of Prior Periods” Financial Statements

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the current period are prepared in comparison with the previous periods
it order to he able o determine the financial position and performance trends. The comparative information is reclassified
when necessary with the aim of ensuring consistency with the presentation of the current period's consolidaled financial
statcrments and significant differences are disclosed.

2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations

MNew and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 2019

TFRS5 16 Leases

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
TFIRS Interpretation 23 [ncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenls
Amendments to TAS 19 Amendments to Employee Benefits

Annual Improvements to 2013-2017 Cycle Amendments to TERS 3, TRHRS 1, TAS 12 and T
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
21 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont*d)
New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 2019 (cont’d)
TERS 16 Leases

General impact of application of TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS |6 provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the nancial
statements for both lessors and lessees, TFRS 16 supersedes the current lease guidance including TAS 17 Leases and the
related Interpretations for accounting periods beginning on or after [ January 2019, The date of initial application of TERS
16 for the Company is 1 January 2019 retrospectively taking into account the cumulative effect in the financial statements.

In conlrast to lessee accounting, TFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in TAS 17,

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group made use of the practical expedient available on transition to TFRS |6 not to reassess whether a confract is or
contains a lease, Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with TAS 17 and TFR3 Interpretation 4 continue to
apply to thoss leases entered or modified before | January 2019,

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates (o the concept of control, TERS 16 distinguishes between leases and
service contracts on the basis of whether the use of an identified asset is controlled by the customer. Control is considered
to exist if the customer has:

—  The right to obtain nearly all of the econamic benelits that will be derived from the use of the asset; and
—  The right to manage the use of the defined assct.

The Group applied the definition of a lcase and related guidance set out in TFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or
modilied on or after | January 2019, {(whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract),

Impact on Lesses Accounting

Operaling leases

TFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under TAS 17, which were
off-balance sheet.

On initial application of TERS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the Group has:
a) Recognised right-of-usc assets and lease liabilitics in the statement of financial position, initially measured at the
present value of the fiuture lease payments;
b} Recognised depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the stalement of profit or loss;
¢) Separated the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest

{presented within operating activities) in the cash flow statement.

Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-ol-use assels and lease
liahilities whereas under TAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease liability incentive, amortised as a reduction of
rental expenses on a straight-line hasis.

Under TFRS 16, right-of-use asscts are tested for impairment in accordance with TAS 36 Impairment af Assets. This will
replace the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and
office furniture), the Group opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line hasis as permilted by TFRS 16

Asoat 1 Janwary 2019, the impact of TFRS 16 on the financial statements ol the Group is disclosed in “the effects of
accounting pulicy amendments™ note.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation {cont’d)

2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)
MNew and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that are effective as of 2019 (cont’d)

TFRS 16 Leases {cont'd)

Impact on T .essee Accounting {cont’d)

Operating leases {cont 'd)
Finance leases

The main differences belween TFRS |6 and TAS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance lease 1s the
measyrement of the residual value guarantees provided by the lessce Lo the lessor. TFRS 16 requires that the Company
recognises as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, rather than
the maximum amount guaranteed as required by TAS 17. During the initial application of the slandard, the Group has
made no changes in the presentation of the cquipment subject to leasing and the lease obligations shown in financial
liabilities,

Ilmpact on Lessor Accounting

Under TFRS 16, a lessor continues to classify leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those twio
types of leases dilferently, However, TFRS 16 has changed and expanded the disclosures required, in particular regarding
how a lessar manages the risks arising from its residual interest in leased assets.

Under TERS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts for the head |ease and the sublease as two separate conlracts.

Tiue to this amendment, the Group has reclassified some ol'the sub-lease agrecments as financial lease. In accordance
with the provisions of TFRS 9, the expected credit losses are recognized in the lease receivables. The leased assets
are derccognized and the leased assel receivables are included in the financial stalements,

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venture

This amendment clarifics that an entity applics TFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or joinl
venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity methed is not applied.

TFRS Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This Interpretation addresses the application of recognition and measurement provisions under TAS 12 when there is
uneerlainty over income tax treatments.

Amendments to TAS 19 Employee Benefits

The Amendments to TAS 19 Employes Benefits address the impact of the changes in defined benefit plans (one of the two
benefits provided aller employment relationship is ended defined benefit plans and defined contribution plans) to the
recognition of the defined benefit plans, and TAS |9 has been amended,

Aunual Tmprovements to TFRS Standards 20152017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to TIRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle include amendments to TFRS 3 Business Comhinations and
TFRS | | Jaini Arrangements in when a party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, TAS 12 Income Taxes;
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, and TAS 23 Borrowing Cosfs in capitalized borrowing costs.

Other than TFRS 16, these standards, amendments and improvements have no impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
2.1 Basis ol Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)

New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopted the following standards, amendments, and inlerpretations to the existing standards:

TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to TFRS 3 Definition of o Business

Amendments to TAS 1 Presentation qf Financial Staiements

Amendments to TAS § Acconnting Policies, Changes in Accounting Fstimates and Errors

TFRS 17 Insurance Confraces

TFRS 17 requires insurance liabililies to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides 2 more uniform
measurcment and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed 1o achieve the goal of
a conisistent, principle-based accounting for insurance contracts, TFRS 17 supersedes TFRS 4 Tnsurance Conlracts as of 1
January 2021,

Amendments to TFRS 3 Definition of o Business

The definition of “business™ is important because the accounting for the acquisition of an activity and asset Group
varies depending on whether the Group is a business or only an asset Company. The definition of “business™ in TFRS
3 Business Combinations standard has been amended. With this change:
= By confirming that a business should include inputs and a process; clarified that the process should be
essential and that the process and inputs should contribute significantly to the creation of outputs,
s The definition of a business has been simplified by focusing on the definition of goods and services vllered
to customers and other income from ordinary activities,
= Anoptional test has been added to facilitate the process of deciding whether a company acquired a business
or a Company of assets.

Amendments to 'TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and TAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors — Definition of Material

The amendments in Delinition of Material (Amendments to TAS 1 and TAS 8) clarify the definition of *material’ and align
the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards.

22 Elfects of Revised Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the TFRS 16 “Leases” standard, which replaces TAS 17 “Leasing Transactions”, as of January 1,
2019, The Group has not restated the comparative amounts for the previous year by using the simplified transition
application. With this method, all right-of-use assets have been measured over the lease obligations during the transition to
application (which are prepaid or restated according to the lease costs accrued),

TL
Operational leasing commitments as ol 31 December 2018 (not discounted) _ 3.B55.730
Total lease obligation under TERS [6 (discounted) 3413133
Short-term lease obligations 1.763.436
Long-term lease obligations |.649.697

On adoption of TERS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases™ under the principles of TAS 17 Leases. These liabilitics were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s Incremental borrowing rate as of 1 Janvary 2019,
The weighted average lessee’s incrementul borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on | January 2019 was 20%
for TL and 4,8% for EUR.

On the initial application, the Group has recognized the lease obligation related to its leases previously classified as
operational leases in accordance with TAS 17. These obligations have been measured at the present value of fhe remaining
lease payments discounted using alternative borrowing intercst rates as of | January 2019, ! \“

e
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.2 Effects of Revised Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Finance leases

‘The main differences between TFRS 16 and TAS 17 with respect to assels formerly held under a [inance lease is the
measurement of the residual value guarantees provided by the lessee to the lessor. TFRS 16 requires that the Company
recognises as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, rather than
Lhe maximum amount guaranteed as required by TAS 17,

As of 31 December 2019, when the current terms and conditions of the Group's existing financial lease agreements are
analyzed, this amendment does not have a significant impact on the consolidated (inancial statements of the Group.

‘The effects of TFRS 16 application on the consolidated statement of linancial position as at 31 December 2019 are as
tollows:

31 December 2019

Except Including

TERS 16 TERS 16 TFRS 16

Eflects Effects Effects

Current Assels 857.423.932 - #857.413.932
Trade receivables 402325775 T A402.325.773
Other recaivables 13,504,303 = 13.904.303
Prepaid expenses 9879884 5 087886
Other current assets components 431,313.968 % 431.313.968
MNon-Current Assels T13.689.703 5.330.515 719.020.218
Other receivables 186 - 186
Right-of-use assets - 5330515 5.330.515
Prepaid expenses 8.534.328 = 8.534.328
Deterred tax asset 13.334.622 ~ 13.534.622
Other non-current assets components 691.620.367 = 691.620.567
TOTAL ASSETS 1.571.113.635 5.330.515 1576.444.150
Short-term Liahilities 834.805.478 1.897.857 856.703333
Short-term borrowings 159.542.901 - 189.542 901
Payables from finance leases - 1.BOT.R57 1.897.857
Other short-term liability components 665.262.577 - 665.262.577
Long-term Liabilities 151.970.843 J.681.798 155.652.641
Long-term barrowings 103.577.340 = 103.5377.340
Puavables from finance leases - 3.681.798 3.681.798
Other long-term liability components 48,393,503 = 48,393,503
EQUITY 564.337.314 (249.140) 564.088.174
Prior years” profit/losses (140.840.586) - [ 140.840.586)
Met profit for the period 22.036.963 (249.140) 21787825
Oither equity compaonents 683,140,935 ™ 683140035

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1.571.113.635 5.330L515

1.576.444.150

RHNAD
SANA
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
132 Fffects of Revised Aceounting Policies (cont’d)

Finance leases {cont’d)
The effects of TFRS 16 application on the consolidated statement of profit or loss as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

31 December 2019

Including
Except TFRS TFRS 16 TIRE 16
i 16 Effects Effects Ellects
PROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 1.422.987.859 - 1.422 987 899
Cuost of Sales (=) . (1.164.241.630) 121,865 (1.164.1159.765)
GROSS PROELL (LOSS) ) ; 258.746.269 121.865 258.868.134
General Administration Expenses (-) (61.342.791) 331.271 (61.011.520)
Marketing Expenses (-) (94.335.743) ; (94.335.743)
Research and Development Expenses (-) (2.570.920) - {2.570.920)
Cither lncome from Operating Activities 53.539.760 - 33.5339.766
_ Other Expenses from Operating Activities (-) (39.5900.505) - {39.900.505)
" OPERATING PROFIT (1OSS) 114.136.076 453.136 114.589.212
Tncome from lnvesting Activitics 168.611 168.611
_ Expenses from Investing Activitics {-) - (48.472) - (48.472)
i EIE;::FP?;:I)T OB RERORE FINANCE _. 114256215 453.136 114.709.351
Finance [ncome 60.092.527 - 60.092.527
Finance Expenses (- C (171.310.648)  _ (7U2.376) (172.012.924)
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORL TAX FROM T :
_CONTINUING ACTIVITIES ) 3.038.094 (249.140) 2.788.954
Tax Income (Expense) From Continning Activities 18.998.871 - 18.998.871
Current Uax (Fxpensc)/lncome (314.862) - (114.362)
Deferred Tax (IncomelExpenses 18313733 o 19.313.733
PROJIT (LOSS) FOR T PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING ACTIVITIES 22.1?!31‘-.965 (249.140) 21.787.825
PROFIT (1.OS5) FOR THE PERIOD 22.036.965 (249.140) 21.787.825

x5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.3.1  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
at banks and highly liquid shori-term investments, with maturity periods of less than three months, which has insignificant
risk of change in fair value,

2,32  Trade reccivables and provision for allowance

Trade receivables as a result of providing goods or services by the Group directly to a deblor are cartied at amortised cost
using vriginal effective inlerest rates,

Provision for impairment of trade reecivables is established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts duc. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted
based on the original effective intercst rate of the originated receivables at inception.

If the impairment amount decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the provision is credited
to other income ln the current period,
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)
2.3.2  Trade receivables and provision for allowance (cont'd)

The Group collects most of the receivables from domestic vehicles sales through the *Direct Drehit System” (TIDS). Within
this system which is also named as Direct Collection System; the contracted banks warrant the collection ol the receivables
within the limits granted to the dealers, Trade receivables are transferred by the contracted banks to the Group's bank
accounts at the dus dates.

233 Inventories

Inventories are stated al the lower of cost ar net realizable value, The inventorics of the Group mainly composed of trucks,
small trucks, midi buses, pickups and spare parts which belong to those vehicles. The cost of inventories is determined on
the manthly weighted moving average method. Cost of the finished and work in process good include raw materials, direct
labaur cost, related general production expenses and exclude the cost of borrowing. Met realisable valuc is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. The allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversion is based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. Idle time
expenses arising from the ceases in production other than planned in the factory’s annual production plan are not assoeiated
with inventories and are recognised as cost of finished goods.

2.3.4  Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation

While property, plant and equipment are presented on financial statement according to the adjusted values based on the
effects nfinflation as of 31 December 2004 for the assets acquired before 1 January 2003, they are presented on the financial
statements by deducting acoumnulated depreciation from cost values for the assets acquired after 2005. As of 31 December
2017, lands and buildings have been monitored by revaluation method. Depreciation is caleulsted using the straight-line
method based on their economic lives. The following rates, determined in accordance with the economic lives of the fixed
assels, are used in calculation of depreciation:

Type Depreciation rutes (')
Land Improvements 7-20
Buildings 2-50
Mlachinery and Lguipment |0-25
Motor Vehicles 10-25
PPurnitures and Fixtures 10-20
Other Property, Plant and Equipment 10-20

Bevaluation Method

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, arc stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined using
fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in other comprehensive Income
and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognized in profit or loss, in which casc the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
expensed, A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in profit
ar loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of thal asset.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognized impairment loss, Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are ¢lassified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreeiation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. :
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
23 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.3.4  Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation {cont’d)

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of & revalued property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the propertics revaluation reserve is lransferred directly to retained
earnings.

Frechold land is not depreciated. Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,

Excepl for land and investments in progress, cost or valued amounls of property, plant and equipment arc depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their cstimated useful lives. Lxpected useful lile, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed every year for the possible cffects of the changes in estimates and accounted for prospectively if thers is a change
in the estimates,

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected uscful lives on the same basis as owned asscls.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
deprecialed over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Deprecialion calculations have been made for buildings subject to revaluation as of 31 December 2019 by taking into
consideration their remaining usclul lives.

An item of property, plant and cquipment is derceognized upon disposal or when no future ceonomic benefits are cxpecied
16 arise from the cuntinued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the dilference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss.

2.3.5  lotangible assets and related amortisation

Tntangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their cstimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lile and amortization method are reviewed at the end of cach reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are compriscd of software programme rights, brand and patent rights and development expenses,
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method based on their economic lives unless they exceed five years.

2.3.0 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition ol a business is carried at cost as established al the date of acquisition of the busincss
less acenmulated impairment losses, if any. Tor the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated 1o each of the
Group's cash-generating umits (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benelit from the synergics of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which poodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired, IT the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the umt
and then to the other assels of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognized dircetly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods,

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisilion of an associate is described under “Investments in associates”
heading,
2.3.7 Impairment of assets

All ussets are reviewed for impairment losses including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets whenever
cvents or changes in vircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, Tf such an indication exists,
the recoverahle amount of the asset is presumed, The recoverable amount is presumed in each year-end for unusable
intangible assets. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset or a cash-
generating unit related to the asset cxceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. Tmpairment losses are recognised in the statement of income. Tmpairment losses on assets can be reversed, to
the extent of previously recorded impairment losses, in vases where increases in the recoverable value of the asset can be
associated with events that occur subsequent to the period when the impairment loss was recorde

EMAD
EAN
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont’d)
2.3.3  Bank loans and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction cosls incurred. Tn subsequent periods,
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any difference between proceeds (net of ransaction
costs) and the redemption vatue is recognised in the statement of income as financing cost over the period of the borrowings.
When it comes to the assets which take long time to get ready to usage and sales, borrowing costs related to production or
construction are integrated to the cost of the asset,

2.3,9  Taxes on income

T'ax liahility on current period's profil or loss includes current period tax and deferred Lax, Current year tax liability consists
ol tax liability on the taxable income caleulated according to currently enacted tax rates and to the effective tax legislalion
as of balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on the temporary differences between the carrying valucs of assets
and liabilities and their carrying, The tax value of assets and liabilitics represent the amounts thal will affect the tax basc in
the future periods related to the assets and liabilitics within the framework of tax legislation. Deferred tax 15 calculated over
the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the period when the lax asset or the liability will be realized by taking inro
consideration the tax rates and tax legislation in ¢[fect as of the halance sheet date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where deferred tax assets resulting from
deductible temporary differences arc recognised to the extent thal it is probable that future laxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differenices associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will he sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foresceable future. Dieferred tax assets and labilitics related to income taxes levied by the same taxalion
authority are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets apainat current tux Habilities.

2.3.10  Provision for employee benefits

The Group is obliged o pay termination indemnities to employees whose employment 1 terminated due to retirement or
due to reasons other than resignation or behavior speeified in the Labor Code, in accordance with the applicable law. The
retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligation,

2.3,11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable cstimate of the amount can be
made, Lf the provision amounl decreases, in the case of an event occurring aller the provision is acceounted for, the related
amount iz classilied as other income in the current period.

2.3.12 Research and development expenses

Rescarch expenditure is recognised as an expense as incuered. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the
design and testing of new ar improved products) are recognised as intangible asscts when it is probahle that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological feasibility, and only if the cost can be measured reliably. Diher
devclopment expenditures are recognised as expense as incurred. Subsidics received from Tiibitak are accounted for as
deferred income by Group and are olTset with amortisation expenses in the income statements in line with the useful life of
the completed projects. Development costs are directly recognised as expense. Development expenses recognised as
cxpense in prior periods are not subject to capilalisation in subsequent periods,

2.3.13  Warranty provision expenses

Warranty expenses arc recognised on an acerual basis for amounts estimated based on prior periods’ realization.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.3 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont’d)

2.3.14  Related partics

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, shareholders, key management personnel and board members,
in each casc logether with their families and companies controlled by/or affiliated with them and associated companies are
considered and referred o as related parties. The transactions with related parties for operating activities are made with
prices which are convenient with market prices.

2,315 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year have been translated at the cachange rates prevailing al the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into TL at the Central
Bank of Turkey’s exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses arising
fram the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assels and liabilities are recognised in the
statement of income.

2316  Earnings per share

Farnings per share disclosed in the statement of income are determined by dividing net earnings by the weighled average
number of shares that have been outstanding during the related year concerned.

Tn Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ("no-par shares") to
existing sharcholders from retained earnings and the revaluation surplus. For the purpese of eamings per share
computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus
shares issues without a correspunding change in resources, by giving them retroactive effect for the year in which they were
issued and for cach earlier year.

2.3.17  Revenue recognition

Warranties given for sales cannol be purchased separately, These warranties are assured that the products sold are in
compliance with the pre-determined conditions, Tn this respect, the Group will continue lo recognize the warranty pro visions
in aceardance with the provisions of the existing TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Conditional Assets.

Commercial velicle and spare part sales

The Group recognizes income according o the accrual basis, when the Group reasonably determines the income and
ceonomic benefit is probable. Group’s revenues are comprised of sales of commercial vehicles and the spare parts of those
commercial vehicles. Net sales is determined by reducing customer returns and sales discounts,

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are gratified:

# The significant risks and the ownership of the goods arc transferred to the buyer,

The Group refrains the managerial control over the goods and the effective control aver the goods sold,
s The revenue can be measured reasonably,

s Ttis probable that the economic benefits related to transaction will flow to the entity,

= The costs incurred or will be incurred in conjunction with the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service rendering

When the revenue fraom services can be measured reliably, the revenue is recorded in accordance with its completion level,
If the revenuc cannot be measured reliably, revenues are recognized as much as the recoverable amount of cxpenses that
are associated with these revenues.

Tnterest income

Tnterest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount,
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATLION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
2.3,17 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Rent inconte
Rent income from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lerm of the respective lease.

When there is significant amount of cost of financing included in the sales, the fair value is determined by discounting all
probable future cash flows with the yield rate, which is embedded in the cost of hnancing. The difference 13 included in
finaneial statements on acerual basis,

2.3.18 Heporting of cash flows
Tn the statement of cash flows, cash (ows during the period are classified under operating, investing or financing activities.
The cash flows raised from operating activities indicate cash Hows dug to the Group’s operations,

The cash flows due to investing aclivilies indicate the Group cash flows that are used for and ublained from investments
(investments in property, plant and equipment and financial investments).

The cash fows due o financing activities indicate the cash obtained from financial arrangements and used in their
repayment,

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank deposits and the investments that are readily convertible into cash and
highly lquid assets with less than three months to maturity.

2,319 Contingent asseis and liabilities

Tossible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-necurrence ol one of moks uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in the
consolidated financial statements and treated as contingent assets or liabilities.

2.3.20  Government Grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and the grants will be received, Government grants are recognized as income over the periods necessary
1o match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate, on 4 systematic basis. Government grants and
assistance received for R&D purposes ofthe Group are explained in Maote 12,

2321 TFRSY Vinancial Tnstruments

TFRS 9, Financial instruments; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This standard replaces
the guidance in TAS 39. Tt includes requirements an the classification and measurement of financial assets and liahilitics;
it also includcs an expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. Group has carried
out valuation studies Lo determine the comulative effect of the first transition and concluded that no changes should be made
to the consolidated financial stalements,
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESTNTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMIENTS (cont’d)

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2,321 TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

At inilial recognition, the Group measures a financial assct al its fair value, except for trade receivables that do not conlain
significant financing component. The Group measures trade receivables al their transaction price (a3 defined in TFRS 15)
if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing companent in accordance with TFRS 15 (or when the entity
applics the practical expedicnt) at initial recognition.

In the initial measurement of financial assets except at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly atiributable
to the acquisition or export of such assets arc added to or deducted from the fair value, Financial assets that are traded in
the nurmal course are recognized at the date of the transaction (delivery date).

The Group reclassifies financial asscts as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis ol both: (a) the Group’s business model for managing the financial
asscts, and (b) the contractual cash {low characteristics of the financial asset. When, and only when, the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected [inancial assets. The Group applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Pinancial asseis measured af amortized cost

A financial assel is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

{a) the financial assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold linancial assets in order to collect
contractual cash Oows and

{b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding.

Interest revenue of financial assets measurcd al amortised cost is caleulated by using the effective interest method. This is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except fon

(a) purchased or originated ercdit-impaired financial asscts. For those financial assets, the Group applies the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from inilial recognition,

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become
credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rale to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods,

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are rencgotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derccognition of that financial assct, the Group recaleulates the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a finuncial asset in its entirety or a portion thereaf.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTATL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.3.21 TFRS % Financial Instruments (cont’d)

First-time adoption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (cont’d)

Financial assels {cont’d)

Financial asseis measwred af fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

{4} the financial asset is held within & business model whose objective is achieved by bath collecting contraclual cash fAows
and zelling financial assets and

{h) the contractual terms of Lthe financial asset give rise on speeified dates to cash flows that are sulely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A pain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the linancial
asset is derecognised or reclassificd. When the financial asset is derccognised the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassificd [rom equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. T
the financial asset is reclassified cut of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category, the
Company accounts for the cumulative gain or loss that was previously recognised in other comprehensive income in the
[inancial statements. Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss,

Atinitial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive Income subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment in an equily instrument that is not held for trading,

Financigl aesels measured af fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured al amoertised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are nol desipnated as an effective hedging instrument against financial risk are also classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, The related financial assets are presented with their fair values and the
gains and losses arising from the valuation are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group recognises a loss allowanee for expected credit losses on financial assels that are measured at amortized cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance tor linancial
assets that arc measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and does not reduce the camrying amount of the financial asset in the stalement of financial
position.

At each reporting date, the Group measures the Toss allowanee lor a financial instrument at an amount equal o the lifetime
expected credit Josses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

1f, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expeeted credit losses
except for purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime expected credit losses since initial recognition as a
loss allowance at the reporting date,

The Group measures the loss allowance at an ameund equal to lifetime expected credil losses for trade receivables, contract
assets and lease receivables that do not contain a signilicant financing component, which is referred as simplified approach.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.3.21  TFRS 9 Tinancial Instruments (cont’d)

First-time adoption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments™ (cont’d)
Financial liahilities

Vinancial liabilitics are initially measured at Fair value, During initial recognition of financial labilitics not designated fair
value through profit or loss, all directly attributable transaction costs related to underwriting of financial liabililies, added
to this fair value,

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measurcd at amortised cost, except for:

(2) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, are
subsequently measured at fair value

(b) financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies, If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the Company has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred assel, the Company continues o recogiise the
transferred asset in its entirely and recognises a financial liability for the consideration reveived. In subsequent periods, the
Company recogaises any income on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability.

() contingent considerativn recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which TFRS 3 applies. Such conlingsnt
consideration is subsequently be measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit or losgs.

The Group does not reclassify any financial liability,

Reconpition and devecognition of financial assels

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of financial pesition when the Group becomes
party tn the contractual provisions of the instrument, The Group derceognizes a financial asset only when the contractual
rights o the cash flows [rom the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial assel and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its relained interest in the asset
and an associated lability for amounts it may have to pay. Tf the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
awnership of a transferred financial asset, the Group conlinues to recognize the financial asset and also TECOEnizes A
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. The Group only derccognizes the obligation it the obligation defined
in the comtract is lifted or canceled or if it expircs on time.

2,3.23  Tvents after the reporting period

Subsequent events and announcements related to net profit or even declared after other selective financial information has
been publicly announced, include all events that take place between Lhe balance sheet date and the date when the balance
sheet is authorised for issue,

Tn the case that events requiring an adjustment to the consolidated financial statements oceur subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the Group makes the necessary corrections on the consolidated financial statements.

2.4 Changes in Aceounting Estimates and Errors

Accounting estimates are made based on reliable inlormation and using appropriate estimation methods. However, if new
ar additional information becomes available or the circumslances, which the initial cslimates based on, change, then the
estimates are reviewed and revised, if necessary. If the change in the accounting estimates is only related to a sole period,
then only that period’s financial statements are adjusted. If the amendmenls are related to the current as well as the
fortheoming periods, then both current and forthcoming periods’ financial statements are adjusted.

Significant accounting ervors are applicd retrospectively and the consolidated financial statements ol the previous period
arg restated.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
2.4  Changes in Aceounting Estimates and Errors (eont’d)

As a result of the assessments made in 2019, the management of the Company determined that there is a nesd for
adjustments in some records due to the use of incorrect exchange rates in the transactions related to a foreign sales project
realized in 2018, The effcets of these errors on the consolidated financial statements have been evaluated and the errors
determined as a result of these cvaluations have been comrected retrospectively, Accordingly, the consolidated financial
slatements as of 31 December 2018 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss are restated as follows:

31.12.2018 Statement of I'inancial Position PE: 2::::3 Adj us:?f?f'::: Ristited
Inventories 481922342 {3.875.538) 4748.046.804
Trade Receivables 238.883.170 10.932.690 249,81 5.860
Trade Payables 320286921 49312133 325.219.034
Deferred Llncome |B.GED 143 2315363 21.004.506
Dreferred Tax Liability .530.661 (167122 6.363.539
Met ProfitLoss for the Period (67.225.774) (13.282.826) {80.508.600)

31.12.2018 Statement of Profit or Loss F;?;E:::ﬁ MME-}':;: Risiaicd
Cost of Sales (-) (994.834.343) (8.807.671) (1.003.642.016)
(ther Expenses rom Operating Activities (-} (118.462.259) (4.642,277) (123.104.536)
Deferred Tax Income 13.716.965 167122 13 884,087
et Proflit/Loss for the Perod (67.225.774) (13.282.824) (B0.508.600)

2.4.1  Other Aceounting Estimates

Tn instances where the accounting estimates affect both cwrrent and furthcoming periods, then description and monetary
value of the estimate is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements except instances where the estimation of the effecl
related (o upcoming periods are nol possible.

a) Deferred tax asscts can be recopnised only when sufficient taxable profit is Hkely o occur in the upeoming periods,
While evaluating, the future profil projections and the applicable approaches of unused losses within the scope of tax
legislation have been taken into consideration. If a tax advantage is likely, deferred tax assets are calculated based on
the deductible financial losses. As of 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible financial losses of TL [58.700.909
(31 December 2018: TL 129.485.428). The Group has recognized deferred tax assets of TL 32.252.554 (31 December
2018: TL 26.409.458) as sufficient taxable profit is Hkely to oceur in the upcoming periods over the portion of the
losses amounting Lo TL 158,700.909,

h) The Group determined the warranly provision based on warranty custs for each vehicle model in previous years and the
remaining warranty periods for each vehicle.

¢} Useful lives of property, plant and cquipment.

The Group reviews the estimated uscful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. The
Company may sherlen or prolong the useful lives and related depreciation of properly, plant and equipment by taking
inte consideration the ntended use of property, plant and equipment, technological progress according to their types
and other factors.

d} Bevaluation of land improvements and buildings:

Land improvements, evaluation of buildings and machinery have been made by taking into consideration the current
markel conditions. As a result of the revaluation, provision for impairment of the fixed assets wilh [air value lower than
the cost value is made, -

The Group's land improvements and buildings have been revalucd by independent appraisals aceredited by the Capital
Markets Board. The Group's land improvements and buildings have been revalued by independent appraisals aceredited
by the Capital Markets Board. The revaluation fund which is composed of the differcnee between the book value and
the fair value is offset with deferred lax and shown under the equily as revaluation fund. Revalvation is performed
periodically.

c) Estimated impafrment of soodwill

The Group annually tests goodwill for impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units ar determined
based on the calculations of value in use.
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NOTE 3 -SEGMENT REPORTING

The ficld of activity of the Group established in Turkey is the manufacture, assembly, import and sale of motor vehicles
and spare parts. The field of activity of the Group, the nature and economic properties of products, production processes,
classification according Lo customer risks and methods used in the distribution of products are similar. Moreover, the Group
is structured on an activity basis rather than being managed under separate divisions including different activitics. Thus,
the operations of the Group are considercd as a single activity division, and the outputs of the Group’s activities,
determination of the resources to be allocated to these activilies, and review of the performance of these activitics are
evaluated accordingly.

MNOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cush and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash {low statements as of the end of the period:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash 92,839 135.442
Banks-Demand Deposits 5.512.789 10,510,358
Banks-Time Deposits (up 1o 3 months) 134.588.637 B5.072.854
Other Liquid Assets (%) G09.269 387345
Tuotal 140.803.554 26.506.029

{*) As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the balance in “Other Ligquid Assets” is consist of dircetly debling system
assels and credit card receivables in bank of group.

There are no blocked deposits as of 31 December 2019 and 3| December 2018,

Cash and vash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash [low statements as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 are as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Liguid Asscts 14,803,554 96506029
Interest Accruals (=) (12.9%85) (24.541)
Total (Lxcluding interest aceruals) 140.790.56%9 96.451.458

The details of time deposits are as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Annual Average Annual Average
Iuterest Rate Interest Ruate
Amount in 'L (%) Amount in TL (%a)
TL Ji.824. 166 10.9% 46.747.044 2210
EUR 83.764.491 n.1o 38.325 810 0.58
Total 134.588.657 85072854 '

The Group does not have any time deposits with maturities longer than one month and the time deposits are composed of
fixed interest rates,

NOTE 5 - FINANCILAL LTABILITIES
e details of bank loans as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

a) Short-term Bank lioans

Bank Loans

Average Effective Interest Hate %, Original Currency Amonnt in TL Tncluding Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2013 2018 2019 2018
ElIR 0,65 6,12 4 998.76% 16.204.535 33.244.816 97.6R0.937
1L 18,59 33,86 136208087 243.671.712 136.298.085 243.671.712
Total 189,542,901, ||  341.352.649
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NOTE 5- FINANCTAL LIABILITIES (cont*d)
b} Short-term Portions of Long-term Finaneial Liabilities
Bank Loans
Average Effective Interest Rate % Original Currency Amount in TL Including Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Euro 4,71 2,95 11.447.779 | 40.082.904 6u.007,211
TL 18,25 15,60 141.943.458 60,984 981 141.943.458
Total 201.067.885 210.950.669

Finance Lease Liabilitics

Averape Effective Interest Rate %

Original Currency

Amount in TL Inchiding Interest

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Euro 4,75 - 479,492 -
TT. 11,50 - 1.418.365 -
Taotal 1.897.857 -

¢) Long-term Bank Loans
Bank Loans

Averare Effective Interest Hate %

Original Currency

Amonnt in TL Including Interest

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Furo 402 492 |5.750.446 56,387,650 0.420.000
TL 3,03 0,04 s 47 189.6%90 e
Total 10:3.577.340 90, 420.000

As of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the payment schedule of long-term loans is as follows:

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

1 to 2 vears 46.381.747 S0.4:20.000
2 b 3 years 30.247.179 -
3 to 4 years 8,549,093 -
4 o 3 years 6.950.723 -
More than § years 11.447.996 -
Total 103.5377.340 90.420.000

Finanece Iease Liabilities

Averace Effective Interest Rate %o

Original Currency

31 December 31 December

31 December 31 December

Aanount in TL Including Interest

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Avro 4.75 - - 501086 -
TL 11,50 - 3 3.180.712 tr
Total 3.681.798 -
Financial net debt reconciliation as of 31 December 2019 and 3| Deeember 2018 is as follows:
2019 2018
Opening balance 642.723.318 432.750.801
Tntercst expense B0.570.48% 5R.507.579
TFRS |6 transition elTect 2.637.031 -
TFRS 18 changes in lease linbilities 2.240 348 =
Tnterest paid (90.868.149) (49.869.393)
Mewly obtained credits 712.726.254 S01.511.800
Loans repaid (878.214.837) (410,429, 800)
Exchange difference _ 27.933.327 110252333
Closing balanee 499.767381  _ all 642.723318
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NOTE 6- TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade receivables at period ends are as fullows:
a) Short-term Trade Receivables

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Trade Receivahles from Third Parties 401.494.445 246,151,053
Trade Receivables from Related Partics 2.573.971 8.021.207
Rediscount Expenscs (-] (1.742.641) (4.356.400)
Doubtful Beceivahles 364,907 173000
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables (<) (364.907) (175.000)
Total 402.325.775 249515860

As of 31 December 2019, the average term for irade receivables is 102 days (31 December 2018: 76 days).
Movements of provision for doubtful receivables are as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Opening Balance 175.000 175.000
Provisions in the Period 189.907 -
Closing Bulance 364907 175.000

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks in trade receivables are given in MNote 28.
Trade payables at petiod ends arc as follows:

b} Short-term Trade Payables

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Trade Payables (o Third Parties 243.892.572 218486019
Trade Payables to Relaled Parties 179.944 348 119509356
Rediscount on Trade Payables (-} (2.163.853) {2,776.321)
Total 421.671.065 325.219.054

As of 31 December 2019, the average term for trade payables is 142 days (31 December 201 8: 98 days).

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks in trade payables are given in Note 28,
NOTE 7- O1I'TIER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

a) Other Short-term Receivables
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Receivables from Tax Office (*) 13.117.897 40.655.834
Due from Personnel T80.340 608.204
Deposits and Guarantees Given 5800 -
Total 13.904.303 41.324.118

{*} As of 31 December 2019, the amount of Group’s receivables was TL 10,804,536 which consists of the receivables
related to the VAT refund request (31 December 2008: TL 39.610.027).
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NOTE 7- OTTIER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)
b} Other Long-term Receivables

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Deposits and Guarantees Given

86

186

Total

186

186

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks in other receivables are given in Mote 28,

¢} Other Shori-term Payables

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Payables Under Employee Benefit 6.822.947 6.115.190
Tax and Funds Payables 1.246.968 944,208
Other Miscellaneous Payables 145,580 34 460
Total 8.215.495 7.093.948

Disclosures an the nature and level of risks in other payables are given in Mote 28,

NOTE 8- DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Foreign Currency Options

As 0L 31 December 2019, the Group has 30 foreign currency options contracls with a nominal value ol JPY 1.818.500 326,
which are determined as cash flow hedging instruments for possible raw material purchases and operational cxpenses that
are exposed to foreign exchange risk (31 December 2018: None).

31 Decemnber 2019
Fair Yalue Assct/

31 December 2018

Mominal

Nominal TFair Value Assel /

Value {Liahility) Value {Liahility)

Foreign currency options 9%.728.201 442,163 - -
Total 98.728.201 442,165 - -

NOTE 9- INVENTORIES

Inventory balances as of perind ends are as follows:

31 December 2019

31 December 20138

Raw Materials 94 .609.705 156.880.979
Work in Process Goods S07.702 1,162,353
Finished Goods 86.257.549 183.893.976
Trade Goods 34.922.855 46.084.610
Other Loventory 2.309.117 1.799.729
Tmport and Domestic Purchase Advances 40.135.681 89.017.661
[mpairment in Finished Goods and Trade Goods (488.002) {792.504)
Total Inventories 2158.854.407 478.046.804

Movement of Provision for Inventory Impairment

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Opening Balance 792.504 807,323
Provision Released Due to Sales (=) {318.261) (333.080}
Current Period Provision (1) 13.759 318261
Closing Balance 488.002 T42.504
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MNOTE 10 PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2019

Uthier Comsteuctinn
Flant, Tampihle in
Land Mazhinery and Furniture anid Fixed Pregress onad
Case Vlue Lond  Improvemznls Huildings Equipment Vlicles Fiztures Assels Addvaiees Tatnl
Opesing Bolence oy at 1 Jansiry 2018 94164, 000 11.302,356 A 090512 191661673 TAus0m 4.059.037 74197 ELE 774.500.758
Additiuns - 4 (ns 1457 EA R R 1,589 926 202.134 - 2429783 16.553.519
‘Loansler from Cnnstruction m Progress - - 18414 34013 = - - {112.432) -
Trisposals % - {156.368) {1734.5498) : = N (2%1-Knit]
Clnsing Dalnmee as af 31 December
1018 4,164,000 1265002 AE3.1TI6RL 203,500,778 4.469.94% A24L181 774,108 3380726 TR0.TEALL
Acemmnlated Tenrecintion
Ognening Balumce as al 1 Jasiary 2019 F (4,457,257 (42,493,007} (L4h560.431] (4615565 (2.949.856] (76395 - (213852130}
Chrye for the yaar = {A4%E19) [8.717.597) (% /G 847} {1-T10.705) [EEERETY [2.392) - {LAS0.24T)
Digpazals - - BER17 141400 =. - 128,117
Clasing Bnlance s at 31 Decenber
2% . - {0, 390 (i 210.559) (1333744611 15.544.871) (3.227.787) [THIL5HT) - (23307060
Mt Chreving Yalue
Chperieg Balance a5 at | Junuocy 2019 U4, 164 1ilik 1.545.509 410,507,645 47.092.147 1782436 Lo 141 7004 LOGLITS  S6k64H.A2T
Clasing Tnlznce os at 31 Devemler :
2019 94 54000 3.744,020 401861122 50,1 35.50% 1235074 1L.013.374 4612 3380726 SST.RER.2S0

TL 11 534035 af the depreciation cxpenses has been changed w cost of sales &nd TL 915716 to research and developusod expenses and T1 1833300 1 markeling cipousea, TL 1526221
b renerzl adminizrative sxpenses avd TL 2233 264 to R&D cagntalization 23 of 3] December 2079
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NOTE i0- FROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cout*d)
31 Becenber 2018

Other Cumsirusiion
Flomt, Tangible in
Ll Kfnchinery and Furniture and Flued Prngress end
Ll Yabue Land  Tuipenavements Buildings Eguipnent Vahicles Fixtures Assels Adlvantes Tidal
_Upening Bulnnee ax at 1 Jamiary 2008 34,164,000 12,286,110 462706, 546 182.189.531 7475600 3T T74.190 dai.d4i 761 560,107
Additions - 6.7 33.300 55650 2,05 g 446432 = 921 [EETEET]
Tmnsfer fram Construsteon i Proimess - 235860 IOERE 42 1 - - (137 -
Diisposals - - - (554 234} {1 560.653) - - {3.834.587)
Clusing Brlumoe ag at 31 Teecmher
201% 54, L5000 12,012,455 463090612 7,445,111 4.00L037 774190 L1.043375 74500, TSR
Accumulnted Depreciativn
Opening Dalumce as ol 1 Janeary 2018 . [5.000.847) {43,165, 705 {156.746.54T) [3.719:140) (25736101 {764,126} - (195276403}
Charsr for e e (ady 21 {9.119.311) (B.712.343) {1567 45 5) [ EA) (2.H69) = [20.137.032)
_Digpazala - BEOLEY a71,330 - - - 1ML
Cloging BEalance &x af 31 December
& - (BAST.257) 52,493,027} {544,569, 4413 {4.613.555) {2.949.856) {Ta6, S - (1158501313
el Cncodnz Yalue
Opening Balunceas ol 1 Janwary 2014 0d_ 154000 4177845 4149432841 45441084 A:156.250 1318977 TILNT dR1.4d44
Closing Bulance ns al 31 Dezenihey
2004 4,154,100 LA4% 350 410,597,585 _AN08L.24T 2. THY 406 1089181 .20 1053375 ShllLA4EA2T

Aamwunbing 1o TL 13,864,571 of the deprecintion expenses bas beesn chasped o eost ot sales and TL 373,930 to ressarch and development expenses and TL 2212911 10 MUrkELNg EXpenses,
TL 1116368 to genaral administrative expenses asd TL 2389251 to RE&T eapitalizabion as of 31 December 218,

Aol 3] Decanber 2019 and 31 Necember 2014, the net book valucs of the Group's Iands mmd hobfings valwed on historical cost arg given below:

I3 = 013
Longd Buildings Laend Buildings
Cnst | 2z e E2.642.B31 22330 Az 561 762
Acoumualaied Deprecatun = [AH. 45605 {44.122.595)

Met Bouk Value _ 1.192.339 34,173,106 1292239 36430067
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MNOTE 11 = INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 December 2019

Other Construelion

Development Intangilile in Progress and
Caost Value Rights Expenses Assets Advances (*) Total
(pening Balance as at 1 January
2019 #08.220 102.847.65%6 22.275.300 32706177 158.037.640
Additinns 20085 - S.R80LTRT 53.084.561 58.994.233
Transfer from Construction in Progress - 31,136,435 39500 {31.173.933) -
Closing balance as at 31 December
2019 837,305 133984121 28.195.853 S4.614.603  217.631.882
Accumulated Amortization
Opening Balance as at 1 January
2019 . {125 887) (53.116.665) (13.834.216) = (67076, 708)
Charpe lor Lhe period (57.713) {1d.602.703) (4.303.376} - (18963791
Closing balance as at 31 December
2019 { 183.600) {67.719.368) (15.137.592) - (B6.040.560)
Carrving Value
Opening Balance as at 1 January
2014 62,333 49.731.021 H.441.350 32.706.177 91.560.881
Closing balance as at 31 December
2019 653.705 66.264.753 10.058.201 54614603  131.591.322

{(*} As ol 31 December 2019, TL 53,233,874 of the “Construction in Progress” amount is related to R&D projects and the
remaining part is related to other intangible assel investmernis.

TT. 11.663 409 of the depreciation expenses ol intangible assets has been charged to costof'sales and TL. 162.014 to research
and development expenses and 11, 476,649 to marketing expenses, TL 1.086.505 to general administrative expenses and
TL 2.487.842 (o R&D capitalization as of 31 December 2019,

31 December 2018

Caonstruetion
Development  Other Intangible  in Progress and

Cost Value Righits Expenses Aszets Advances (%) TOTATL
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 JT0.007 73279357 18.324.258 24.870,334  116.843.956
Addditions 418,213 - 3154318 JR.200.162 41793693
Transfer from Construction in 'rogress - 29568320 796.590 (30365519 -
Clﬂsill:g balance az at 31 December 2018 BOE.220 102847686 22.275.566 32,706,177 158.637.049
Accumulated Amortization
Opening Balance as at | January 2018 (95.518)  (42.363.735) (10.842.285) - [83.301.53%)
Charge for the period (30369) (10.752930)  (2.991.931) - (13.775.230)
Closing balance as at 31 December 2008 C(125.88T)  (53.116.663) [13.834.216) - (67076.768)

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 274.489 30.915.622 . -531.9?3 24.870.334  63.542.418

Clasing halanee as at 31 December 2018 682,335 49.731.021 8.441.350 31.T06.177 91560881

(*) As of 31 December 2018, TL 30.704.294 of the "Construction in Progress" amounts to K&} projects and the remainder
relates to other intangible assets,

TL 11.907.970 of the depreciation expenses of intangible assets has been charged to cost of sales and TL 353318 to rescarch
and development expenses and TL 341.219 o marketing expenses, TL 393.187 to general administrative e
1.579.537 to R&D capitalization as of 31 December 2018,
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NOTE 12 - RIGHT-0OF-USE ASSETS

The Group started to apply TFRS 16 Leases Standard for the first time on | January 2019, For the leases that are previously
classificd as operating leases in accordance with TAS 17, a right-of-use asset is included in the condensed consolidated
financial statements over the same amount as lease liabilily restated according to all lease payment amounts that are prepaid
and accrued as of | January 20149,

Asof 31 December 2019, the right-of-use assets’ balances of depreciation assets and depreciation expenses in the relevant
period are as follows:

Cost Yalue

Opening Balance as at 1 Janwary 2019 3.413.133
Additions _ 3509412
Closine balance as at 31 December 2009 T.012.545

Accumulated Amortization

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2019 -

Charge for the Perind o {1.682.030)
Closing balanee as at 31 December 2019 {1.682.030)

(.‘arginﬂ'g Value -

Opening Balance as at 1 Janoary 2019 3413133

Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 5.330.515

1L 586.998 of depreciation expenses has been charged to cost of sales, and TL 1,095,032 to general administration expenses
as of 31 December 2019,

NOTE 13 - GOOIYWILL

As of 31 December 2019, there is poodwill amounted to TL 2.340.995 (31 December 2018: TL 2.340.995). The Group has
calculated the recoverable amount of zoedwill and no impairment is recognized, Lo this caleulation, a discount rate of 24%
(2018: 25% per annum) was used with S-year cash flows prepared based on the budgets approved by the management.

NOTE 14- GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

The cash support amount, which was collected [rom TUBITAK in relation to R&D activities in 2019, is the TL 544.054.
The cash suppart amount, which was collected from TUBITAK in relation to RE&D activities in 2018, was the T1. 484 841,

The Group has R&D expenses which can be utilized for tax calculations with an amount of TL 183.309.407 as of 31
December 2019, As per amendment made in Article 35 of the Law on Supporting Research and Development Mo, 5746
which became effective on | April 2008, R&L deduction rate from which will be benefited for the expenses of R&1D has
been increased [rom 40% to 100% (TL 101.193.234 as of 31 December 2018).

In order o benefit fram the incentives and exemptions provided in line with the Law No. 5746, the Group applied to the
Ministry of Industry and Commerce to hecome an R&D centre, On 3 June 2009, the Group was entitled to become an
R&D centre.

Regarding the TL 8.688.3835 spent as of 31 December 2019 in accordance with Incentive Certificate the Group has starled
ta benefit from the 20% investment incentive and 50% discounted corporate income tax incentive within the framework
of Article 32/A of the Corporate Income Tax Law in proportion to the effeet of the investment on generated income,
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NOTE 15 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Other Short-term Provisions

31 Pecember 31 December
2019 2018
Warranty Provisions 11,436,342 9.647.216
Provision for Lawsuits 4174012 4.335.690
Provision for Premium and Commission T.797.705 IR9.809
Other 28002 -
Total 23.436.001 14.392.775
Movements of provisions during the period are as follows:
Provision
iz Provision for
LT for Other Preminm Taotal
Provisions : - T hae -
— Lawsuifs and
Commission
Opening Balance as at 1 Januoary 2019 9647216 4.355.6490 - 389.869 14.392.775
Additions During The Period 17.818.209 2063018 28002 71.797.705 27.707.834
Taid During 'The Period (-} {16.029.083) (2.243.396) - (389.86Y9)  (18.664.548)
Closing Balance as at 31 December 2019 11.436.342 4.174.012 28.002 1.797.705 23.436.061
Provision
Warpatit Provision for
fl for  Other Premium Total
Provisions : T S o
e Lawsuits and
Commission
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2018 11,642,227  3.567.284 - 109,869 15.319.380
Additions During The Period 10,433,281 2.209.093 - 189,869 13.032.243
Paid During The Period (-) (12.428.292)  (989.915) - (109.869)  (13.528.076)
Reversal of provision (-) - {430.772) - - (430.772)
Closing Balance as at 31 December 2018 9.6047.216 4.355.690 - J50.860 14,392,775

Lawsuits against the Group:

As of 31 December 2019, there are 80 ongoing lawsuits filed against the Group due to the cancellation of employment
termination and other claims for employment and other compensation. Based on these lawsuits, T1. 4.174.012, which is
recognized based on assessments of the lawyers, was reserved as lawsuit provision (as of 31 Decemnber 2018, the lawsuit
provisions amount is TL 4,355,690

Mortgages and guarantees on assets:

There are not any mortzapes and guarantees on assets,

Total insurance coverage on assets:

Total insurance coverage on assels is TL 812.616.800 as o 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: TL 812.616.800).

Contingent liabilities which are not shown in liabilities listed are as follows:

Type 31 December 2019 3 December 2018
Given Letters of Guarantes 317.956.692 158.145.516

Total 317.956,692 158.145.516
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NOTE 15 — PROVISLIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)
Contingent liabilities which are not shown in liabilities listed are as follows (cont'd):

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

A, CPMs given in the name ol its own legal personality 317.956.692 158.145.516
i. Letter of Guaraniee 317.956.692 I158.145.516

B. CPMs given on behalf of fully consolidated companies - .

C. CPMs given in the normal course of business activities

on hehalf of third parties - -

1, Total amount of other CPMs - +
i. Total amount of CPMs given on hehalf of the parent - -

i, Total amount of CPMs given to on behalf of
other Group companies which are not in seope of I8 and C
iii. ‘Total amount of CPMs given on behalf of
third parlies which are not in scope of C - .

Total 317.956.692 158.145.516

The ratio of oiher CPM is given by the Group to the Group's cquily is 0% as of 31 December 2019 {096 as of 31 December
2018).

I'he Group is exposed to foreign currency risk since its foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are formed of
different currencies. In order to hedge its forcign currency position due to the fluctuations in the foreign exchange parities,
the Group enters into forward contracts.

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Short-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Provision for Employee Rights and Salaries 2.950.000 =
Provision for Unused Vacation 1.130.612 B43.193
Taotal 4080.612 843,195

Shori-terin provisions for employee benelils consist of provisions that were calculated and unpaid as of the end of period.

b) Long-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Provision for Emploviment Termination Benelits 27.764 472 23 885435
Total 27.764.472 23.885.435

Within the framework ol current laws in Turkey, it is obligatory to make the severance pay of each employee who has
completed one year service period, has been paid off regardless of any related reason, has been culled-up for military service
along with men who have completed 25-year service period, women who have completed 20-year service period or those
who have completed age of retirement (58 for women, 60 for men). Because there is not any funding obligation for the
severance pay provision in Turkey, any special fund is not allocated in the financial stalements.

The severance payments are calculated over 30-days gross salary for each service year. Primary assumption is that ceiling
liability set for each service year increases in proportion to inflation. In parallel with this, real discount rate which is clearcd
of the potential inflation impacts is considered at the implementation stage. The severance pay cap is revised in every six
months, the ceiling amount of TL 6.760,15 (1 January 2019: TL 6.017,60) applicable as of | January 2020 has been rogarded
for the calculation of the Group's provision of severance pay.

Moreover, the severance payments are nol made for thoss who leave the job with his'her wish; eslimated rate related to
these severance pay amounts that will remain in the Group's account is considered,

Considering the Liahility of Severance Pay are related to the next perinds as per TAS 19, current values of the severance
payments which will he made as of the balance sheet date are calculated to determine an approximate inflation expectation
whose net difference relers a real discount vate and find an appropriate discount rate. b
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NOTE 16— EMPLOYER BENEFITS (cont’d)

The actuarial assumptions considered in the caleulation of the provision for employment termination benelits are as follows:
31 December 2019 31 December 20138

Anmual Net Discount Rate (%) 3,72 3,64
Turnowver Rate to Estimate the Probability of Retirement (%4} 4.41 3,99

The provision calculated by estimaling the present value of the [ulure probable obligation of the Group arising from the
retirement of the employees is recognised to the cunsolidated financial statements.

Movements of the provision for employee termination benefit during the perind are as follows:

31 December 20019

31 December 2018

Opening Balance 23885435 19.448.904
Interest Cost BEE.760 802,938
Gain/(T.055) on Remeasurement of Defined Benelit Plans 2922142 3724197
Paid within the period (2.903.7T43) (3.293.349}
Current service cost 2971918 3.202.747
Closing Balance 17.764.472 23.835.435

NOTLE 17- OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Prepaid Expenses

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Advances Given 6365848 20.510.548
Prepaid Insurance Exponses 146.406 181.114
Prepaid Subscription Expenscs 53.492 27.240
Prepaid Advertisemenl Expenses 178.799 315378
Frepaid Other Fxpenses 3133341 1.300.213
Total 9.879.886 27.340.495

b} Other Current Assets

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Deferred VAT 26.467 386 33375030
Oither Current Assets 4.322.209 810,827
Total 30.789.595 54,186,757

¢} Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid Expenses

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

5.534.328

2058179

Total

§.534.328

2.059.179

d) Deferred lneome (Short-Term)

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Order Advances Received 6.069 854 6,309,007
Deferred lncome (*) 712.466 14.105.470
Tuotal 6. 782,350 20.414.477

{(*) 'The amount of cash incentives received tor the company’s R&D activities and which should be transferced to the income
statement for upcoming months as of 31 December 2019 is TL 369,845 (31 December 2018: R&T) cash support income that

will be transierred to the income statement for upcoming months is TL 360.791).
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NOTE 17- OTHER ASSETS AND LTABILITIES {cont"d)

¢) Deferred Income (Long-Term)
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Ireferred Tncome (*) 683,841 590.029

Tuotal (33.841 590,029

(*} The amount of cash incentives received for the company’s R&T activities and which should be transferred to the ncome
statement for upcoming months as of 31 December 2019 is TL 683.841 (31 December 2018: TL 590.024).

f) Liabilities Arising from Customer Contracts (Long-Term)

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Ieferred Maintenance and Repair Tncome 19,945,190 13,492 820

Tuotal 19.945.190 13.492.820

NMOTE 18- SIHARE CAPITAL, RESERVYES AND OTHER EQUITY LITEMS
a)  Capital / Eimination Adjustments
As of 31 December 2019, the share capital of the Company is 'TL $4.000.000 (31 December 2018: 'TL 84.000.000).

This share capital is divided into 8.400,000.000 in total, including 4.515.314.51 1 A Group registered shares, 2498 204373 B
Group registered shares, 1.386.481.116 C Group bearer's sharcs, cach with nominal value of | (one) Kr. The distribution of
this share capital on the basis of share group is as fllows:

31 December 20149

Shareholders Group A Group B Giroup C Amount Share (%)
AG Anadolu Grubu Lolding A5, 44.844.772 - 1.690.629 46.515.401 55,40
Isuzn Motors Lid. - 14,273 509 - 14.275.509 16,50
Itochu Corporation Tokyo - 7048322 - T.948.322 9,46
Ltochu Corporation Tstanbul - 2758212 - 2758212 3,28
Oither INR373 - 12174183 12482556 14,87
Tutal 45.153.145 24982043 13.864.812 4,000,000 100,00
31 December 2018
Total Share

Shareholders Group A Group B Group C Amount Share (%)
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A5, 44 844.772 - | .690.629 46.535.401 55,40
Lsuzu Mators Ltd. - 14.275.509 - 14.273.509 1,99
ltochu Corporation Tokyo - T.948.322 - T.948.322 9,46
Ttochu Corporation fstanbul - 2758212 - 2758212 3,28
Cither 308.373 - 12.174.183 [2.482.556 14,87

Total 45,153.145  24.982.043 13.864.812 54.000.000 100,00
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NOTE 18- SHARFE, CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY TTEMS {cont’d)
by Privileges Granted to the Share Groups

The Company is directed by the fourtcen members of the Board of Directors clected among shareholders by General
Assembly in accordance with the regulations of Turkish Commercial Code.

Four members of the Board of Directors are clected from the candidates nominated by the shareholders of Group B and the
remaining members of the Board of Directors are elected frum the candidates nominated by the sharcholders of Group A
by the General Assembly.

Equity 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Paid-in Capital B4.000.000 #4.000.000
Capital Inflation Adjustiment Difference 30,149,426 30,149,426
Reserves on Retained Exming 162.221.926 162.221.926
Retained Earnings (140.840.586) (60.331.986)
Gain / (T.oss) on Revaluation and Measurement 417.373.045 417.373.043
{Losses) on Remeasurement of Delined Benefit Plans {10,603.462) (B.265.748)
Met Profit / (Loss) for The Period 21.787.825 (R0LAS08.600)
Sharcholders’ Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Group 564.088.174 544.638.063
Non-Controlling Shares B S - -
Total Shareholders’ Equity 56640588174 544.638.063

¢} Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit

Restricted reserves appropriated [rom profit are comprised of legal reserves and other reserves.

Restricted Heserves Appropriated [rom Frofit 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Legal Reserves 23784678 23.784.67%
Feal Eslale Sale Profit Exemption 138,437,248 |38.437.24%
Total 162221926  162.221.926

Turkish Commercial Code (“ICC") stipulates that the (irst legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate
of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. The second legal reserve is
approprialed at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash disteibutions in excess of 5% ol the paid-in capital. Under the TCC,
the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-
in capital. In addition, the Group’s profit on the sale of real estate, which is considered to be within the scope of Arlicle 5/e
of Corporale Income Tax Law No. 5520, is classified under this accounting category as a “Real estate sale profit exemption”.
As of 31 December 2019, the Group's total restricted reserves appropriated from profit are TL 162.221.926 (31 December
2008: TL 162.175.629).

d) Retained Earnings/Losses

Retained earnings is comprised of extraordinary reserves, miscellancous inflation differences and other prior years’ income.

The Group’s prior years” income details as of period ends arc as follows:

Retained Tarnings/Losses 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Lxtraordinary Reserves 9661 446 9.661.446
Legal Reserves Inflation Difference 24.820.489 24 820489
Retained Earnings / (Losses) {175.322.521) (94.813.921)

‘Total (140.840.586) ~ (60.331.986)
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. NOTE 18- SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY I'TEMS (cont’d)
Cuoted companies make profit distributions as follows:

If the amount of profit distributions calculated in accordance with the net distributable profit requirements of the CMB does
not exceed the statutory net distributable profit, the total amount of distributable profit should be distributed. Llowever, no
profit distribution would be made if any financial statements prepared in accordance with the CMD or any statutory accounls
carrying net loss for the period. In accordance with the CMB’s decision dated 27 January 2010, it is decided not to bring
any obligation for any minimum profit distribution about dividend distribution which will be made for publicly owned
COMpHnies,

Inflation adjustment on Equity; the carrying amount of extraordinary reserves could have been utilised in issuing bonus
shares, cash dividend distribution and offsefting accumulated losses. However, equity inflation adjustment differences will
he liable to corporate tax if it is used in cash profit distribution.

Group's retained earnings is TL 140,840,586 bascd on the financial statements prepared in according with TAS/TFRS
Financial Reporling Standard for the period ended 31 December 2019,

In aceordance with the Communigué No;XT-29 and related announcements of TAS/TFRS, eflective from | January 2008,
“Share Capital”, “Restricted Reserves” and “Share Premiums” shall be careied at their statutory amount. The valuation
differences (such as differences from inflation adjustment) shall be classified as follows:

« “the difference arising from the “Paid-in Capital” and not been transferred to capital yet, shall be classified under
the “Capital Adjustment to Share Capilal™;

- the difference due to the inflation adjustment of “Restricled Reserves™ and “Share Premium™ and the amount has
not been utilised in dividend distribution or capital increase yet, shall be classified under “Retained Earnings™. Other
equity items shall be carried at the amounts calculated based on CMB Financial Reporting Standards.

NOTE 19- REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

A 1 January 2019 L Jannary 2018

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Domestic Sales 0R9. 547030 T 727927
Foreign Sales B04.352.370 528,831,949
Other Income 11.830.304 0996220
Sales Total (Gross) 1.505.749.713 1.275.556.094
Sales Discounts (<) (82.761.814) (87.693.311)

Sales (MNet) 1.422.987.599 1.187.862.785
Cost of Sales (1.164.119.765) {1.003.642.016)
Gross Operating Profit 258.868.134 184.220.76%9
Cost of sules are summarised as tollows;

. 1 Janwary 2019 1 January 2018
Cost Enlies 31 Decemhtj‘r 2019 k1 De:emh:f'r 2018
Raw Malerials and Supplics Expenses (RO0.449.209) (754.956.145)
Direct Labor Expenses {(33.524 460) (34.282.041)
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses (23.784.442) (24.772.541)
Other Production Costs {16.050.685) (13.516.973)
Total Cost of Production {393.808.796) (847.527.700)
Change in Goods Lnventory (124.413.984) 24,617 287
Cost of Trade Goods Sold (144.218.898) (179.644.850)
Cost of Other Sales { L6T8.087) (1.086.713)

Cost of Sales

{1.164.119.765)

(1.003.642.016)
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NOTE 20- ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXPENSES

a) Research and Development Expenses

1 January 2019
31 December 2019

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

Depreciation Expenses (1.077.730) (727.248)
Outsourced Benelits and Services (632.001) (1.015.469)
Personnel Expenses (484.891) {363.917)
Oiher (376.298) (801.731)
Total Research and Development Expenses (2.570.920) {2.908.365)

; 1 January 2019 1 January 2018
h) Marketing Expenses 31 December 201931 December 2018
Faport Expensc (19.825.184) (11.305.8532)
Personnel Expenses (16.729.750) (14427 .040)
Transportation, Freight Expenses {15.032.371) (100596017
Tiomestic Sales Expense (12310:416) (8.605.115)
Advertisement Expenses (6.690,786) (10.457.051)
Royalty Expenses (*) (5.614.994) (4.190.378)
Travel Expenses (3.352:502) (2.467.118)
Depreciation Expenses (2.329.950) (2.554.130)
Business and Service Lxpenses (2.014.440) (1.594.338)
Representation-Hospitalily Expenses (1.470.827) (1.191.103)
Warranty Expense Provision (999,084) (1.173.031)
Tax, Dutics and Fee Expenses {543.050) (2.102.765)
Consulting, Audit Expenses (514293} {20.000)
Insurance Expenses (393.535) (308.013)
Maintenance and Repair Lxpenses {128.224) (118.464)
Chther {6.386.337) (6.931.317)
‘Total General Administrative Expenses (94.335.743) {77.505.316)

(%) As of 31 December 2009, TL 5 I 78167 of royalty expenses amounting Lo 5.614.994 T1 is related to license agreements
with Isuzu Molors Lid, Tokyo, 11 348128 is related to license agreements with Isuzn Motors Lnternational Operation
Thailand and TL 88.645 is related to license agreements with AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A.S. (As of 31 December 2018,
TL 3.838.439 of royalty expenzes amounting to TL 4.190.378 is related Lo license agreements with Tsuzu Motors Ltd. Tokyo,

TL 331.939 is related to license agreements with Tsuru Maotors Tnternational Operation Thailand).

¢} General Administrative Expenses

Personnel Expenses

Business und Service Lxpenses
Consulting, Audit Expenses
Depreciation Expenses

Insurance Expenses

Tax, Duties and Fee Expenses
Travel Lxpenses
Representation-Hospitality Lxpenses
Maintenance and Repair Expenses
Eent Expenses

Other

1 January 2019
31 December 2019

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

(23.255.987)
(11.024.623)
(10.752.938)
(3.707.758)
(3.124.035)
(2.929.624)
(535.685)
(490.877)
(211.632)
(202.724)
(4.775.637)

(61.011.520)

(18.140.418)
(9.392.269)
(7.905.040)
(1.709.555)
(2.679.891)
(2.770.764)

(542.007)
(206.483)
(208.846)
(1.400.054)

. (3.009.795)
(47.965.122)
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NOTE 21- EXPENSES BY NATURE
1 January 2019
31 December 2019

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

(800.449.209)
(144,218.898)
(124.413.984)

Direet Raw Material and Supplies Costs
Cost of Trade Goods Sold
Change in Finished Goods and Semi-Finished Goods

Personnel Expenses

Depreciation And Amortisation Fxpenses

Other

(93.995.088)

(30.899_880)
(125.060.889)

(754.956.145)
(179.644.890)
24.617.287
(87.213.416)

(29.763.474)
(105.060.181)

Tatal Expenses

(1.322.037.948)

(1.132.020.819)

Fxpenses by nature include cost of goods sold, marketing, selling and distributicn expenses, gencral administration expenses

and research and development expenses,
NOTE 22- OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other Income from Operating Activities: M

1 January 2018

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Foreign Exchange Tncome on Trade Receivables and Payables 31.080.787 74.409.060
Discount Income on Trade Payables 6.551.714 8.921.845
Service Tncome 4.121.761 1.179.802
Delay Interest Income 3.290.030 4 489.837
Incentive Tnoome 1.861.704 2.692.001
Sale Support Tncome |.006.440 9.184.995
Fent Income 479017 279628
Tubitak R&D lncentive 441,189 516015
Insurance Tndemmnity lucome 211.746 44,116
Released Provisions [81.678 -
Lixport DF.LF Support 153.615 15.488
Other lncome 4.159.165 5.240.110
Total 53.539. 766 Le.972.917
4 - s 1 January 2019 I January 2018
Other Lxpense from Operating Activities: 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Foreizn Exchange Expense on Trade Receivables and Payables (32.634.717) {116207.097)
Dhseount Income on Trade Beceivahles (4.637430) (5.007.176)
Tnsurance [ndemnity Tneome (2.245.5960) (1.614.674)
[.awsuit Provisions (189,907 =
Donations and Contributions {33.080) {34.250)
Other Expenses (159.775) (241,339
Total (39.900.505) {123.104.536)

NOTE 23- INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1 January 2019

Income From Investing Activities 31 December 2019

1 January 2018
31 December 2018

Gain on Sale of Machinery and Equipment 168,611

726273

_Total _ _ 168.611

726,273

amuar
Expenses from Investing Activitics 1 Junwary 2019

1 January 2018

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Loss on Sale of Machinery and Equipment (43.472) {306.332)
Total ) (48.472) (306.332)
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NOTE 24- FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

T e 1 January 2019 1 .January 2018
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Foreign Exchange Gain 56.385.083 T6.5904.565
Lnterest lncome 3.507.444 6.085.048
Total 60,092,527 R3.589.617
Finane Exponie: 1 January 2019 1 January 2018

) 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Interest Expense (80.949.498) (56.560.201)
Foreign Exchange Losses {B0.BRD.393) (154.078.767)
I.etter of Guarantee Expenses (5.349.276) {2.367.841)
Forward Purchase Expensc {1.338.944) {1.947.37E)
Expense from Derivative Transactions (442.165}) (691.432)
_ Other Finance Expenses i _(3.043.650) (2.504.188)
_Total {172.012.924) (218.149.807)

NOTE 25- TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSKTS AND LTIABILITIES)

The Group’s tax expense (or income) is comprised of current period corporate tax expense and deferred tax expense (or
ncome),

1 January 2019 1 January 2018

fasount 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Current Incame Tax Provision (-) (314.362) (262.785)
Defiorred Tax lncome / (Expense) (Tncome Statement) 19.313.933 13.884.087
Tax Income / (Expense) - Income Statement 15.998.871 13.621.302
Tax Income / (Lxpense) (Comprehensive Income Slatement) 584428 744839
Total Tax Income / (Expense) 19.583.299 ) 14.366.141

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Current Corporate 'L'ax Provision 314.862 262,783
T.ess: Prepaid Taxes - (739109 (1.098.616)
Tax Payable - - (424.247) (835.331)

As of 31 December 2019, the amount of corporate tax paid in advance is amounted to T 424 247 which is portion of
exceeding the corporation tax amount to be paid and it is included in the Assets Related to Current Period Taxation (31
Tlecember 2018 TL 835.8310.

i Provision for Current Period Tax
The Group is subjected lo Corporate Tax in Turkey. Necessary provisions in supplementary financial stalements have been

made for estimated tax Liabilities regarding Group's aperations in the current period.

The corporate tax to be accrued over the taxable profil is caleulated by adding non-deductible expenses to the accounting
profit; deducting investment and research and development allowances, income that is not subjected to taxation and the
dividends received, from companies located in Turkey, from the accounting profit.

Consolidation principle is not utilized to prepars financial statements related to tax that is effective in Turkey,
The effective tax rate in 2019 is 22% (2018: 22%).

According to the provisional article 10 added to the Corporate Tax Law, a corporate tax rate of 22% will be taken over the
corporate carnings of the corparate taxpayers for the 2018, 2019 and 2020 accounting periods.

Tax losses can be carried forward to offsct against future taxable income for up to five years, However, tax losses cannot
be carried back to offsel profits from previous periods.

According to Corporate Tax Law’s 241h article, the corporate tax is imposed by the taxpayer’s tax returns, There is not an
exact mutual agreement procedure with Tax Authorities in Turkey. Annual corporate tax returns are submitted to the relating
tax offices until the 25th of April in the following year. Tax authorities have the right to audit tax declarations pud accounting
records for 3 vears and may issue re-assessment based on their findings.
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NOTE 25- TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Tncome Withholding Tax:

In addition lo corporate tax, companies should also calculate income withholding lax on any dividends and income
distributed. The rate of income tax withholding is 15%.

i) Deferred Tax
The deferred tax asset and tax liability are based on the temporary differences, which arise between the nancial statements
prepared accarding to TAS/TFRS's accounting standards and statutory tax financial statements. These differences are

usually due to the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods [or the TASTIRS standards and tax
purposes.

Timing differences are result of recognizing certain income and expense items differently for accounting and tax purposes,
Timing differences are calculated off of the tangible fixed assels (except land and buildings), intangible fixed assets, stocks,
the revaluation of prepaid expenses, discount of receivables, provision for termination indemnities, and previous years® loss,
Every accounting year, the Group reviews the deferred tax asset and liabilities, where the deferred tax asscts cannot be used
against the foture taxable income, the Group writes-ofl the recorded delerred tax asset, Corporate tax rate used in the
calculation of delirred taxes is 22% for temporary differences ending in 20018, 2019 and 2020, and 20% [or other long-term
temporary differences.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cumulative Deferred Tax Cumulative Delerred Tax

Yemporary g qsets/ (Liabilities) Temporary  accets ( (Liabilities)

Differences Diflerences
Inventories 576.786 126,893 739.530 162.697
Mon-Current Assels (MNet) (518.424.296) (65.032.304)  (517.378.544) (64.823.153)
Provision for Employment
Termination Benefits 27.764.472 5.552.894 23 885435 4. 777087
Guarantes Provisions 11.436.343 2.515.995 9.647.216 2122 388
R&D Discount 183309407 6661 881 101.193.234 20.238.647
Current Year Financial Loss (%) 158.700.909 32.252.554 [20 485 428 26409458
Rediscount LxpensesTncome (Net) {452.673) {99.588) 1.461.811 321.554
Lawsuit Provisions 4,174.012 D18 283 4.355.690 958.252
Other (Met) 2900058 638014 15. 770,600 3.469.531
Total ~ 13.534.622 {6.363.539)

{*) Tt is forescen that the financial loss of the current perind will be completely lowered in the nexl 4 years,

I January 2019 1 January 2019

Movement of Deferred Tax Assets / (Linbilities): 11 December 2019 31 December 2019

Opening Balance (6.363.539) (20.992.465)
Delerred Tax (Expense) / Tncome Charged to Profit or Loss 19.313.733 13 884 087
Deferred Tax Income Charged to Comprehensive Income 584428 744,830
Closing Balance 13.534.622 (6.363.539)

"The reconciliation of the current tax cxpense with the period profit/loss is as follows:

1 Janwary 2019 1 January 2019

Reconciliation of Tax Pravision: 31 December 2019 31 December 2019

Income { (Loss) from Continuing Operations 2.788.954 (94.129.902)
Corporate Tax Rate 22% (613.570) 20L708.578
Tax Effects of:

-R&D Incentive 16.423.235 13.136.803
-R&D Support Income 97.062 113.523
-Mon-deductible expenscs 133.328) (141.248)
-Income Mot Subject to Tax 3070432 183.835
-Other 33040 {(20.380.191)

Income/{Expense) on Tax Provision Recognised in Profit or Loss 18.998.871
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NOTE 26 - EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

1 January 2019 1 January 2018

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Met Profit / (Loss) for The Period 21787825 (80.508.600)
Weighted Average Number of Shares with Nominal Value of | Piaster £.400.000.000 £.400.000.000
Income Per 100 Share with Nominal Value of TL 1 Each 02594 (0,9554)

NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a) Related Party Payable and Receivable Balances:

Group's receivables from related partics are mainly due to trade goods, service sales and rent income, Group’s payables to
related parties are mainly due to raw material, service purchases and rent expenses.

The Group does nol charge interest on its trade receivables from related parties.

31 December 2019 Receivables I"avahles
Balances with Related Parties
Trade MNoo-Trade Trade Non-Trade
Teochue Corporation Tokyo 1.223 666 - 170.457.879 -
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. A5, 647,620 - - -
Celil Motor Ticarel A5, 613.628 - - -
Tsuzn Motars Td. Tokyo 81.437 - 3.237.022 -
Anadaolu Landini Traktdr Uretim ve Pazarlama AS. 7.570 z E -
Lsuzn Motars Europe NY 0 - - -
Iswzu Motors International Operation Thailand - - 4.510.104 -
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A5, - - 674818 -
Lifestur Turizm [letmeleri AS. - - 578122 .
Migros Ticaret A5 - - 417.402 -
AEH Sigorla Acenteligi AS. - - 50.01% £
Adel Kalemeilik Tic. ve San. AS. - - 5.485 -
Anadolue Efes Biracibk ve Malt Sanayi AS. - - 4364 -
Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand Lid. - - 133 -
_ Payables to Sharcholders (*) - - " 9.109
Total 2.573.971 - 179.944.348 9.109
31 December 2018 HReceivables Pavables
Balances with Related Parties Trade MNon-Trade Trade Noo-Trade
Ltochny Corporation Tokyo (G.589.810 - 107.332.716 -
Tsuzu Motors [nternational Operation Thailand 1.088.993 - 3 -
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. AS. 217279 - - -
Celik Motor Ticarct A.S, 61.918 % : "
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetlern A5, 30,945 - - =
Anadolu Efes Biracilik ve Malt Sanayi A% 12.262 2 2 "
ltechy Corporation Shangai - - 1.523.031 -
Mligros Ticaret ALS, - - 367.531 -
Lifestur Turizm Isletmeleri A S - - 123.061 .
Isuzu Motors Ltd: Tokyo - - 69.803 -
Oyex Handels GMBH - - 48.344 -
AFH Sigorta Acenteligi AS. - - 31.735 -
AG Anadohn Grubu Holding ALS. - - 7.291 -
Adel Kalemeilile San. ve Tie. ALS. - - 5.519 -
Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand Lid. - - Fdh £
_Payables to Sharcholders (*) _ - = = 9.109
_Total 8.021.207 109.509.356 9109

(*} Non-Trade Payables to Shareholders balance is classified under other payables in balance sheet.

A?ﬁ%
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

b) Related Party Transactions:

1 January-31 December 2019

Goods and Fixed Total
Sales tn Related Parties Services Assels Other Expense/
Purchases Purchases Income Purchases
Tsuzu Motors Lid. Tokyo 47.549.471 - - 47.549.471
Ttochu Corporation Tokyo 2.123.310 - - 2.123.510
Anadoly Motor Urctim ve Paz. A5 2.011.373 £ - 2.011.373
Celik Motor Ticaret A§. 1.364.043 - 24,030 1.388.073
Isuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 1.303.8938 - - 1.303.598
ltwchu France 257989 - - 257.989
Anadalu Landini Tralctte Uretim ve Pazarlama A S, 7.570 - 120,810 128.380
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A5, 22,205 £.200 .74 40.174
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetlerl A5, - - I6.362 16.362
 Isuzu Motors Germany Gmbh = 1.433 - - 1.453
Total 54.641.312 8.200 170,971 54.820.483
L January-31 December 2018
Geoods and Fixed Total
Services Assets Other Expense/
Snles to Related Parties Purchases Purchases Income Purchases
Lsuzu Matars Lid. Tokyo 15.198.274 - - 15.198.274
Ttachu Corparation Tokyo 14.727.509 - - 14.727.509
Isurn Motors International Operation Thailand 3.228.112 - - 3,228.112
Celik Motor Ticarct A5, B05.084 - 15.037 820,120
Anadoly Motor Tiretim ve Pazarlama A5 360.684 - - 360,684
A Anadolu Grubu Holding A3, - 305,400 - 305.400
Migros Ticarct A5, - 101400 - 101.400
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetlerd A5, T1.639 - = 71.63%
Anadolu Efes Diraciik ve Mall Sanayi A5, - - 43,130 43.130
Total 34.391.307 4006800 58.167 34.856.274
1 January-31 December 2012
Goods and Fixed Total
Services Aszets {ther Expense/
Purchases [rom Helated Partics Purchases Purchases Expenses Purchases
Ttochu Corporation Tolyo 208,500,767 - - 208.500.767
Llsuzu Motors Ltd. Tokyo 13.924 946 - - 13.924.%46
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding AS. 7.737.696 7.159 43.450 T.788.305
Tsuzu Maotors International Operation Thailand 5,749 850 - - 5.749.890
Lfestur Turizm Isletmeleri A5, 5.018.167 - - 5.018.167
Iechu Shanghai Lid. 2203972 = = 2.203.972
Celik Motor Ticaret A5, 1.629.913 3,500 51.930 1.712.343
Anadolu Biligim Hizmetleri AS. 1.205.30%9 2400 - L.214.709
Tsuzu Moetors Co. Thailand Lid, 276.761 - - 276.761
Migros Ticaret A5, 218.942 - - 218.942
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. A8, 27.160 - - 27.160
Adel Kalemeilik Tie. ve San, AS. 22,159 - - 22,159
Anadoly Landini Trakesr Uretim ve Pazarlama A5, 14406 3.403 - 17.809
Anadolu Efes Biracilik ve Malt Sanayi A.S. 14,779 - - 14.779
Anadolu Saglk Merkezi [ktisadi Tgletmesi 973 - - 973

_Total 2146.545.840 50462 95.380  246.691.682
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont™d)
b) Related Party Transactions (cont*d):
1 January-31 December 2018
Goods and  Fixed Assets Other Total
Services Purchases Ex 5 Expense/
Purchases from Related Parties Purchases Purchases
ltechu Corporation Tokyo 202,716,307 - - 202,716,307
Tsuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 120.829.399 - - 120,829,399
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding ALS. £.554.703 - - 6.554.703
Isuzu Motors Lid. Tokyo 6,531,338 - " 6.531.338
Efestur Turizm Isletmeleri A5, 4.209.663 - - 4.209.663
Celik Motor Ticaret A.5. 2.073.067 - 93.706 2.168.773
suwzu Molors Co. Thailand Ttd, 602,019 - - 602019
Migros Ticarct AS. 134,034 - - 134.034
Anadoly Motor Uretim ve Paz. A5, 115818 - - 115818
Oyex Handels Gmbh 60,358 - - G0.358
Anadolu Efes Biracihik ve Mall Sanayi A5, 33.999 12.296 - 48,295
Lsuzu Motors Germany GWMBH 47,899 - - 47.599
Anadolu Saglik Merkezi [ktisadi fsletmesi 603 - - 603
Kipa Ticaret A.S. 159 - - 159
Total 343.913.366 12.296 93.706 344.01 9368

¢) Donations to Anadolu E@itim ve Sosyal Yardim Vakh:

As per the Maimn Arlicles of Association of the Group, at least 2% - 5% of the Group’s profit before tax following the distribution
of 1st dividend shall be donated to Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardim Vakfl as long as it is subject to tax exemption, Donation
was not made o Anadolu Bgitim ve Sosyal Yardim Vakh by the Group in 2019 { Donation was not made in 201 8),

d) Key management compensation:

31 December 2019 31 Deeember 2018

Salaries and other short-term benefits 10.960.402
Total 10960402

9.184.708
9.184.708

The benefits provided to lop management (General managers and Directors) mclude salaries, bonuses, premiwms, and the
employer's share of social security.

NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able W continue as a going concern while
maximizing its profit and market value through the optimization of the debt and cquity balance.

Thie Group’s equity comprised of cash and cash equivalents in Note 4 and cquity items in MNote 16,

Tisks, associated with cach capital class, and the capital cost are evaluated by the lop management, It is aimed that the
capital structure will be set in balance by means of new borrowings or repaying the existing debts as well as dividend
payments and new share issuances based on the top management evaluations.
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
{a) Capital risk management (cont’d)

The Ciroup monitors capital by using debt Lo total capital ratio. This rativ is caleulated by dividing Lhe net deht by total
capital. The net debt is calculated by excluding the cash and cash equivalent amounts [rom the total debt amounl (including
credits, leasing and commereial debts as indicated in the balance sheet),

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Met Debt 781,635,292 471,436,343
Total Equity 564.088.174 544 638.063
Net Debt/Total Fguity 1,38 1.60

Increase of the rate of net debts to equity compared to prior year arise from the periodical increase in using credits.
General strategy of the Group based on sharcholders™ equity is not different from previous periods.

The Group conducts hedging contracts (including derivative financial instruments) for the purpose of diversifying foreign
currency fluctuation risks.

(b) Price risk

Equity instruments which arc classified on Group’s balance sheet as available-for-sale are subjected to price risk. o order
to manage the price risk due to capital instruments, The Group has a limited number of financial assets which are available-
for-sale.

o) Market risk

T'he Group is subjecl to the financial risks related to the changes in the exchange rate (Please sce {d} below) and interest
rate {Please sec (¢) beluw) due to its operations and other (Please see (f) below). Also due to having financial instruments,
the Group alse bears the risk of other parties not mecting the requirements of agreements (Please see (g) below).

Marlcet risks seen at the level of the Group arc measurad in accordance with sensitivity analyses.

The market risk of the Group incurred during the current year or the method of handling the encountered risks or the method
of measuring those risks ars not different from the previous year.

(d) Foreign exchange risk management

Forcign currency transactions may result in foreign currency risk.

The Group maintains loreign currency time deposit accounts in banks as the Group has recejvables and payables in foreign
currencies. As a consequence, the Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk due to the changes in exchange rales

used for converling assets and liabilities into TT. Foreign exchange risk arises from future trade operations and the
differences hetween assels and liabilities.
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEYEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

{d)} Foreign exchange risk management {cont'd)

Statement of Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitivity Analysis

31 December 2019
Profit / Loss
Appreciation of  Depreciation of

Foreion Foreign
Currency Currency
In case of US Dollar increases in 10% against TL;
| - 1J8 Dollar Met Asset /! Liability 7738012 {7.738.612)
_2- US Dollar Hedges (-) = A
- Net Effect of US Dollar (1 +2) = T.738.612 {7.758.6012)
Lo case of Furo increases in 10% against TL;

4- Euro Met Asset/ Liabilily {21.699.709) 21.699.709
5~ Furo Hedges (-} _ ) - -
6- Net Effect of Euro (4+5) (21.699.709) 21.699.709
In case of other exchange rates increase in 10% against TL;

7- Other Fxchange Rates Net Asset/ Liability {7.744.713) 7.744.715

8- Other Exchange Rates Hedpes () ) - =
9- Net Effect of Other Exchange Rates (4+5) (7.744.715) 7.744.715
TOTAL (3+6+9) (ZL.705.812) 21.705.812

Statement of Foreion Exchange Rate Sensitivity

31 December 2018

Prafit / Loss
Appreciation of  Depreciation of
Foreign Foreign
Currency Currency
Tn case ol US Dollar increases in 10% against TL;
1 - 1715 Drallar Net Asset / Liahility (4001513 400.151
2- US Daollar Hedges (-) _ - -
3- Net Effect of US Dollar (1 +2) (400.151) 400.151
In vase of Euro increases in 10% against TL;
4= Euro Met Asset ! Liability (26.061.449) 26.061.449
_ 5-Furo Hedges (-} _ - -
~6- Net Effect of Euro (4+5) _ (26.061.449) 26.061.449
In case of other exchange rates increase in 10% against TL;
7- Other Exchange Rates Net Asset [ Liability (6.138.2635) 6.138.205
8- Other Exchange Rates Hedpes () : _ - =
9- Net Effect of Other Exchange Rates (443) (6.138.265) 6.138.265
TOTAL (3+6+9) (32.599.865) 32.599.865
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MOVTE 18- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARTSING FROM FINANCIAL INSTHUMENTS {cont™d}
() Forzign sxchanges nisk massgement {oone’d)

Seatement of Foreign Currency Position

31 December D12 N Pecember MR
TLamoum  USTllar Eean ¥en e | TLAmaun U5 Dular Eurs ¥ triher
| Teads Reccivabies 155 200 049 13828471 14AET AT LIUESIE  1ALITAM | AITRI 163,471 101161 - ATAAm
2a. Mooziary Financinl Auscta 46210 1S 153243370 AT ! LMY RIESG SETEII MR 3G
T Himanoziary Fnencial Aswin - - - - -1 4 : f
3. eher } i 1013R 414 . . - o lusuEAL T - o -  5RT 520
4, Crrenl Ayt (<3433 ISR IR0 HLILLHY LSIESH  TRasLM 116752551 551337 2041372 FIE AART
5 Toeale Receivehles - - - - -1 E - H
s Monetery Fimmicinl et 2 : . - | B, M X
£l Hisn-saoeeery Firancisl Avecm - - - - i - - ] -
? i : : - - = - - - -
B Mumenrreit Asels {547l = - - - - : - F - 2
0. Tatal Acuets (1441 ASTAATL  Jdanhrs M43 LA RA0E | [16IvsEl 481327 14LITE A AL iR
19, Treabs Tawsdilzs AR RSO0 BT AN 1 RETAM.TET LFhhk | FOLIAL TS Lilesan IMATEIL LITLO0L 54 | EA7A0F
11. Fnencial Liskefitics 1738 - 20,134,063 - | ELTELE - 2AFLIT - -
110 Miisetry Uther Liabefiies A312.1% - 2196 - 15 | TILGEL - 122044 - .
L2b. Fen-Monctery Qifker Linbidines g GRS 3T TISATR - -1 174440 ] 31330478 -
251065, W B4y 521K 521 LARTAATIT  LAS76 | JATAIA21G LILIM ARITRI62 aWETLSIL LAYIANT
1. Finemsind Linhilidazs 2045874 - 130005 - = RHER T Lo 00 -
T, Manears Ciher Lishilites . - 2 - - - = 3 < .
b Mon-Mizrctirs Cileer Lighilrzes = - - | . - = ) - =
ot LIgbilices (131157 18) S5ARETIS . A1 - -1 d0daane - 15080000 - i
18, Tostel Lighilities (13417 ] E18ESLAI2 4IZ04T  ARTEALT LEGTHIATIT  TSROTA | MTAMING  1andes SLITEIG  JBMGIZAN LEOTARD
14, {dT-balance Sheet Drrivalie [aspraments Net Aset |
Ligkilicy} Pasitizn [1n-141) 3 - i = o | - = - -
150 Toih Ao of Halpal Asses - - - - -1 -
157 Tueal dangusr of Letged 1inkililica - : 2 i x — 2 - = -
 Z8.Net Farelgn Cureercy Avecisf[Lihilities) Pasiioa 01-18+19) QITINIT)  GATTEE  LEMIMN) (e ATEIM |07 1041 323N (LERAILIGG  dTA0GET
0 Maneary Treas Net Fareipn Cernescy dsicls § (Liobdlties)
{1 F T AL -0 281515 16a) iy QRIS 1133RSI  (45147044)  (RR4E2IGIM)  BIMG1A3S | (117.10T.11A) (U05LE) G0N TRE) (12TGAMLALLG CIMASLESE
_ k. Fuir Value o Fisancled insiruments Thod foe Cuivency Hedee - . - - -1 - = - -
23 Hedaed Forelin Currency Asris - = - = -1 d - -
24 Hedged Ferelgn Corroney Tintdises - - = c = = 3 E
25. Export H04.052,570 - - - EEEROW - = % E
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NOTE 28- NATURFE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont™d)

{e) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to variable and fixed interest rates. Group’s financial liabilities and assets
with fixed and variable interest rates (guarantee etc.) arc respectively shown at Mote 4,

Interest Rate Position Tahle

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Financial Assets with Fixed Rates
Financial Assets |34 588.657 85.072.554
Financial Liabilities {460.943.310) {634.66%.113)
Financial Liabilities With Variable Rates
Financial Assets - -
Financial Liabilities (33.244.816) (8.054.203)

As of 31 December 2019, if the market interest ratc had increased/decreased by 100 basis point with all other variables held
constant, period income before tax and consolidated equity of participations of the Group would have been higher/lowar hy
TL 332.44% (31 December 2018: higher/lower by TL 80.542). ;

(f) Funding risk

The ahility to fund the existing and prospective debt requirements is managed as necessary by obtaining adequate committed
funding lines from high quality lenders,

{z) Credit risle managemenl

Holding financial instruments also carries the risk of the other party’s not mecting the requirements of the agreement. The
Group’s collection risk is mainly derived [rom trade receivables. Trade receivables are evaluated by the management of the
Group depending on their past experiences and current economic condilions and are presented in financial statements when
necessary allowances for doubtful receivables are provided,

Most of trade receivables are comprised of receivables from costumers who has given an adequate amount of guarantees. An
cifective control system was established to colleet the receivables. Credit risk arising from transactions is followed and (hese
tisks are taken into account when assessing each debtor. Because there are so many costumers. The Group’s credit risk is
dispersed and there is no important credil risk concentration. Receivables from forcign customers as of 31 December 2019
are TL 1935.203.049 and there is no peographical concentration (31 December 2018: TL 68.173,508).
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(g) Credit risk management {cont’d)

Receivables
Trwde Heceivables {ither Receivables
Heluted Cither Reduted Other
CURKENT PERIOD Parties Partics Farlies  Parfics Muxte Dicposit Muote
Maxwimum credid risk exposed a5 of halance sheel
date (AFHHCHDHE) 15734971 J0.TRI.AN4 - 13,104,489 140, 101446
- Serwred purtion of the marammy credit risk by puoraniees i, - 306 TSR0 o - fi -
A Met ol value of fluancial assets which are undue or
which ig wol Invpaired .57 IRI942 454 - 135014449 -5 T4 I A6 4
B. Book value of finnnciul wssets which conditions are
renegotiaced, umil which otberwise would he connded as
overdue or ingaired - - = -
. Met book value of assets, overdue bul ool hnpaired - L5 R0, 350 =] - 7-4
- Sewweed by Givarautes, e, - L5 R0% 350 - T-H
D, Met honlk walue of assets deceeage in value - - - - -
= Owepdue [mrass boak waslug) = (364907} - - 7-4 -
- fmygraaivanent (=} - I6d W7 - 3 T-4
- The part of el valiee secimed by puorantes . - - = - -
- Unchiss [gross buok walus) - - - - -
- Tpadrament - s L z " -
- The pal of mef value secured by yuaranios ¢ic. E - =
E. Eleovents containing crodit risk ofT the balanes sheet = - - - -
Recelvables
Trade Keceivalles Oither Receivables
Related lier Relared Chleer
PRIOK PERIOD ) PPurties Parrics Purties Partica Mate Dheposit Mate
Maximum credit risk exposid as of halance sheet
date (AFBHCHIHE) H.o21.207 T41. 794653 - AL 32404 95081142
- Becnred portion of the maranume credit rivk by poraitees o, o] 2417653 - - -
Al Met buoh valug of financial assets which are vndue or
which is ol Inipaired A4021.207 212 THO.350 - 413243 -8 A5543.242 d
E. Book vahee of finuncial usseis which eonditinns are
renegntiated, und wlich otherwise would be counded 25
overdue or impaired
7, Met houk vulue of assets, overdoe hut not impaiced = 29,014,503 . - T8
- Becwrod by Clearanies, @6, - 29084503 - - -8 -
1. Met bizok value of assets decreuse in value = - = - -
- Owerduss (groas baok waloz) - (175,00%1) - - 1.4
- Impuirment {<) + Lraoan - = T-H 3
- The port af med valie secired Ay puaromtee el » - - 7 3
- Undue (aress book valae) - - - - #
- Smpairement (=) = . -

« The part al net value geonred by poarmaee be. - - -
E. Elemeauts eontaining credit risk off the balanee sheer - = -

The ageing of trade receivables, overdue but nol impaired, is as follows:

'Receivables
Trade Other Deposits

31 December 2019 Receivables Receivables at Banks Derivatives Other
Past due up to 30 days [2.667.506 - - - -
Past due 1 - 3 months 859.424 - - - -
Past due 3 - 12 months 2282420 - - - -
Past due | - 5 year - - - - -
Pasl due over 5 vears ; - . - - -
Assets covercd portion with guarantee letter efe. 15.809.350




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 201%

{Amaunis expressed in Turkish Liva unless otherwise indicated.)

Puge No: 48

NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

— Receivables
Trade Other Deposits N
31 December 2018 Receivables Recelvables at Banks Derivatives Other
Past due up to 30 days 26.112.873 = - - -
Past due 1 - 3 months 2.901.430 - - - -
Past due 3 - 12 months - - - - -
Pastdue | - 5 year - - - - -
Past due over 5 years = - # & -
Assets covered portion with guarantee letter ete. 29.014.303 = - = -

Tmpairment analysis on trade reccivables is made over the ageing table and though assessing the management’s best estimates.

The Group manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, and reserve borrowing facilitics by continuously

monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of finuncial assets and liabilities.

Liguidity risl tables

Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and having the availability and
flexibility of funding through an adequate amount of (committed) credit facilitics.

The risk of meeting existing and probable future liabilities is managed only by means of having access to sullicient number

of trustahle creditors,

The table below indicates derivative and non-derivative financial habilities of the Group in terms of TL and maturity term.

Mon=-Derivative Financial Liabilities

31 December 2019

Tuotal
Contracted
Carrying Cash  Less than 3 3o 12
Contract Terms Value Ouiflows Months Months 1t 5 Years 5 Years +
Bank Loans 494,188,126 554733379  121.580.810  290.148.705 121409201 21,594 663
Gthér Fireincu) 5.579.655 6331536 608275 1824826  3.898.433 1
Liahilities
Trade Pavables 421.671.065 423 866378 290188320 1336778533 - -
Other Payables 8.215.495 8.215.495 8.215.493 - - -
Tatal 929.654.341 993,146,788 420.593.100 425.651.389  125.307.636  21,594.663
31 December 2018
Total
Carrying Contracted Less than 3 dto12
Contract Terms Value Cash Ouiflows Months Monihs 1to 5 Years SYears+
Bank T.oans 642 723318 664059718 186190469 383002438 G4 Bon 811 -
Trade Payables 325219054 323181710 246,854 441 T6.327.269 - -
Oither Payables T.093.948 7.003.948 7.093.948 - - -
Total 975.036.320 995235376 440.138.358  460.229.707  94.866.811 .
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont’d)
Derivative Financial Liahilities

The Group does not have derivative financial liabilitics as of 31 December 201% and 31 December 2(H 8.

Fair Value and Hedging Disclosures
The Group helieves that registered values of financial instruments reflect their fair values,

Ohjectives of fingncial dsk management

Finding access to financial markets and managing financial risks arisen foum operational activities of the Group fall under the
responsibility of the Group’s linance department, Aforementioned risks include marleet risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and price risk); financial risk covers market risk (exchange rate risk, fair value of interest risk and price risk), credit risk
liquidity rizk and cash fow risk.

Dretermination of the fair value of financial asscls and liabilities are explained below:

Level 1: Valuation of the financial assets and liabilities over the stock exchange prices of similar assets and liabilities resulting
from the transactions in active markets.

Level 2: Valuation of the financial assets and liabilities over the price calculated on the basis ol the data that is directly or
indirecily observable in the market other than the slock exchange price of the relevant asset or liability determined on the first

level.

Level 3 Valuation ofthe financial assets und liabilities carried out in the absence of observable data in the markel for determining
the fair value of the relevant asset or liahility,

Derivative Financial Insiruments

Tn order to hedge these risks, the Group enters into forward foreign curreney transaclion agresments as a financial instrument
where necessary.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's foreign currency transaction agrecment, which is a decivative financial instrument, is
as follows (31 December 2018: None):

Tevel | Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Options - 442,165 . 442.165
Net - 442.165 - 442.165

NOTE 29- EVENTS AFITER REPORTING PERIOD

Mone.
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